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“Performance. Commitment. Quality.
In aword, Wates. The Wates Group
Is driven by a commitment to its
customers, partners, shareholders,
employees, communities and the
environment. As a family-owned
business with 116 years’ expenence,
we share a deeply held sense of
responsibility to provide outstanding
projects for our customers and to
make a lasting difference to the
communities In which we work.”

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chairman and Chief Executive

02 Business and Financial Dverview

04 Chawrmaon and Chiet Executive s Review

08 Case studies

Q08 Luton Aguanc Centre

10 Umversity of Manchester

12 Budding Futures — Gatewrys to Gidham
14 John Loing

16 Morks and Spencer

18 Kirklees - Excellent Homes for Life

20 Community Energy Soving Programme
22 Picket Piece Andover

24 PINCH

26 Business and Finoncial Review
26 Business Review
42 Fmonont Rewew

44 Governance

44 Risk Manogement

46 Board of Directors

48 Executive Commitiee

SO Dwectors Report

52 Corporote Governance Report

57 Drectors Remuneration Repart

59 Stotement of Dwectors Responsibiities

60 Accounts

60 Independent Auchtors Report

61 Consuldoled Prohl ond Loss Account

62 Consohdated Balance Sheet

63 Consokdated Stotement of Total Recognised
Gans and Losses

63 Reconcihabon of Movements in Group
Shareholders Funds

64 Compony Bolonce Sheet

65 Consolidated Cash Flow Statemert

66 Notes to the Accounts

86 Prinapal Subsidiory Undertokings

87 Other information

87 Group Frve Yeor Summary
87 Adwsors

88 Addresses

—| m
— m 3
™

il om Ll
Nmmha
= jloll Q| w
w3
g|l 3

m
™ —
3l [zl 3| E 2 [a
p=—1 o ~4
gisigl®)’? AP E
&) 3 & g2
w
3 3 3
™
[
L9
-~
3
08 09 W u 12 a8 Q9 10 1N
GROUP TURNOVER * GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX

nciuges share of Jort veniimes CNa assacale s Lmover

08 03 10 U 2

NET ASSETS

Wates Annudl Report and Accounts 2012




Business and Finonciol Overview ]

WHAT WE DO

Wates Group s o fomily-owned construction services and
development company thatis fully commutted to delivering the
fughest quality projects to our customers while makmg a difference
to the lives of people in the communities 1n which we work

Keeping peogle safe from harm remains a top prionty and we
continue ta engage with site operatives and our supply chain to
ensure we are constantly stnving to improve

Our business includes Developments with expertise In land,
planning and jont venture developments, Needspace? which
provides flexible workspace for entrepreneurial businesses

ond our general Construction business whrch includes Living Space
and Construction, delivering for core markets such as education,
new build affordable housing, focal authorities, hentage,
commercial and mixed-use developments. planned and responsive
maintenance as well as intenors and Retoil which provides high
quality fit-out, structural re-engineering and national roll-out of
hugh volume projects 1tis this diversity across market sectors that
underlines the strength and stability of the Group

2012, Wates performed strongly in challenging morket
conditions for the construction industry as a whole Qur experience
in delvenng outstanding projects means that we continue to bulld
long term ralanonships with our customers and enjoy high levels of
repeat business

This annual report sets out the achievements of the Group and all
aur people and outlines the opgortuntties for the year ahead

£1.2bn™

GROUP TURNOVER 2012

GROUP PERFORMANCE

CONSTRUCTION TURNOVER

£547Tm’

With many years' experience wotes
Construction specioises n maximising

value for our customers ond delwenng
outstanding buitdings across the UK

We have a strong trock record i olf our core
markets education pnsons local authornties
hentage commerciol ond mixed-use
developments and g real understanding

ot our customers’ needs

LIVING SPACE TURNOVER

£455m”

Wates Living Space s one of the UK s leading
afforduble housing construcTon services
providers We work with local authoniies
and social landlords to provide the best
all-in-ane service for our clients across

the UK. In 2012 we bult or refurbished over
22 000 properties and our successhul
inkegration of Linbrook Services enables us
to provide a iull responsive maintenance
offenng However we do more than pravide
good quality homes we make a real
difference 1o residents lives by contributing
to the wider regeneration of communit:es

Above all it s about people



£29.3m’

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2012
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DIVERSE CUSTOMER BASE

INTERIORS AND RETAIL TURNOVER

£117m

Durning 2012 we restructured our Interiors
and Retoil businesses, combining them

under one leadership to provida a rational
infrastructure and greater flexibility for our
customers Intenors and Retail 1s now focused
on delivenng high quahty fit-out structural
re-engneenng, ond novoncl roli-out of

high volume projects Servicing @ number

of sectors including hugh street bronds
supermarkels retail ond office landloros ond
panks Our track record in delivenng on time
on budget. in live environments with rinmum
disruption, ensures Jong term repeat busmness
refationships with our customers

DEVELOPMENTS TURNOVER

£73m’

Wates Developments combines expertise

in land acquisiion planning consent far
brown and greenheld sites and jont veniure
residentiol developrments Our iinancial
strength and commerciol acumen makes
us on attractive partrer for both land
owners and developers across Southern
England ond we plan to continue to grow
our portfolio of land mvestments

NEEDSPACE? TURNOVER

£2m

Needspace? provides offordable

and flexible menoged office workshop
and studa uruts for smoll businesses
n London and the South East

At each of oyr high quality bustness
centres we Qim Lo create a community
of entrepreneurs, developing thew
businesses alongside athersina
supportive environment

nchudes shore of ol vENtnes hunoves
* inciaaes Shore of ot ventises ond ass000ies lnovet
t _nderhng txofit belore tax stoted befo & restrusitrng
“05ts 00G a0t ar saie Of nvestment s
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Chomrman and Cheef Executive s Review J

CONTINUING

TO DELIVER
ASTRONG
PERFORMANCE IN
A CHALLENGING
MARKET

I am pleased to report that the
Wates Group delivered solid
results in 2012, in challenging
market conditions

The UK and European economies
continued to exhibit low growth
and pubkic sector investment

(n UK construction projects
dechined sigrficantly

The Group's diverse portfolio
and excellent performance in
some businesses drove turnover
upby 7%to £1 2bn’ This same
diversity insulated the Group
from tightening margins in
Construction with underlying
pre-tox profit* of £29 3m

Above cll it's about people




Reduced demand for construction, some
unsustanable pricing by competitors and
an increasing number of supply chain failures
combined to create the most demanding
trading conditions Thus together wmith some
opergtional challenges placed pressure

ON MArgins m our construction business
Excelient performance in residenttal
development however enabled us to
detver pre-1ox profi of £29 3m* atanet
margin of 2 7%

The Wates Group 1s @ wholly family

owned business, founded on pnnciples of
sustomnability; using positive business growth
to help improve the environment and sdvance
the well-being of local communities teday and
for juture generarons

Qur Group s purpose 1s to deliver business with
Increased value potential and reputotion from
ane generation to the next

The key ta this s a strong resihent balance
sheet built over the years by strotegic long
term nvestment and a yeor on year focus on
sustainable profit delivery

Further investment during the year
increosed capital employed in residential

ond commerciol property to £77m

This investment and Wates prudent approach
has resulted in a strong balance sheet

Shareholder funds grew dunng 2012 by 9%

to st over £70m, with both the fong term
future und bnoncial stability ot the Lore of our
business decrsion making The result s that we
are a strong rehoble and stoble business which
benefits our partners ond customers ghke

The Wates construcuon business includes
Construction with a turnover of £547m™

with core markets including education, both

n the UK and the Middie East local authonity
frameworks hentage projects and commercial
and mixed-use developmenis

Living Space with o turnover of £455m*
providing new-build altordable housing ond
refurbishment together with planned and
1esponsive mamtenonce enhanced by the
successful integration of Linbrook Services

Belera rest Uctawigcosts ond profit <n sale ofiwes'men s * including share cf jont ventutes

Business and Fnancigl Qverview

[ D] enairman and Chiet Executive s Review
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Qther infarmation

“OUR FINANCIAL STABILITY, THE DIVERSITY OF QUR PORTFOLIO
AND THE VALUES OF A FAMILY RUN BUSINESS THAT HAS

BEEN COMMITTED TO THE CONSTRUCTION INBUSTRY FCR
GENERATIONS, ENSURE THAT WE WILL CONTINUE TO BUILD
LONG TERM RELATIONSHIPS WITH OUR CUSTOMERS”

Intertors and Retal with o turnover of E117m
providing interiors and Tt - out related services
10 some of the UKs biggest retailers and
commerctal customers including, Marks and
Spencer fohn Lews and Lloyds Banking Group

Alongside our Tingncial stobiity und reslience
15 the diversity of our portfolio Extending

the Wates business across several morket
sectors with strong differentiotion und diverse
customer prabiles reduces ngk and bukdsin
turther resilience Lo the iinancial periormance
that underlines the strength and stabilty of
the Group

This prudent approach to growth has
proven successful

RESILIENCE AND ADAPTABILITY
TOACHIEVE RESULTS

In addition to demonstrating resilience

the Group has odapted to tougher market
condtions We restructured our Intenars
and Retail businesses and reorganised our
Construction busimass to help us respord
more efhciently to ur customers chongng
needs and to make better use of our tolent
and resources

To ensure we remam competitive we have
nght-sized the business where necessory
With an averall headcount reductionm 2012
of 283 we have made annuahsed savings of
over £18 5m and the busiress will Continue to
target further improvements to deliver better
value and improve ethooncy

*+ Inciuding shore of it ventures ond msonote

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chaoirman ond Chiaf Executive

Despite the econormic chmate we continued

to Investin our people ther traming

and development with 17 335 troming

requirements delivered across the Group since

2010 on average of 5,778 per annum and 3

troming needs per person per annum Over

the past 3 years 11 trainees have progressed :
through our training programmes with great

ambition and potentiol for the future

Qur batance sheet and cash posttion reman
strong and our rgorous fingneiol managernent
together with strong commitment from

the Wates Tamily gives us a reol basss for
competitive odvantage and means that we
are n g strong position {o keep developing the
busmness for the future

Sofety s a core value {om pleased with

lhe progress we made in 2012 A sigruficant
improvement in our safety performance
resuited in a 53% reduchon in reportable
accdents and g 48% imprevement in our
near miss reporting The imbiatives we put in
place Plan Right Start Right, and Look and
Feel assessments which focus on the active
management of sites have hod a posiive
impact on our sofety record ond | am confident
that we will continue ta improve in 2013

On behalf of the Wates Group Board Fwould
like to thank the management teams who
have steered a clear course through rost
tificult imes | would also hike (o thonk all our
employees for ther continued dedication
ond commutment — it 1s therr efforts that
have enabled us to continue to prosper In
ochallenging environment and have given

us so meny reasons to be proud of Wates
throughout 2012

wotes Annual Report and Accounts 20012




CTholrman and Chief Executive s Review

“THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY
DECLINED A FURTHER 10%

IN 2012 (A REOUCTION OF
CIRCA 30% SINCE THE START OF
THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN)
WE WILL CONTINUE TO REMIND
GOVERNMENT THAT PUBLIC
INVESTMENT iN CONSTRUCTION
IS THE MOST BENEFICIAL

USE OF STIMULATIVE PUBLIC
EXPENDITURE IN BOTH THE
SHORT AND LONG TERM EVERY
ETINVESTED IN CONSTRUCTION
GENERATES £2 84 IN TOTAL
ECONOMIC ACTIVITY"

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chairmon and Chief Executve

£1.6bn

FGRWARD GRDER BOOK

£3.1bn

PIPELINE OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

QUR COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Our customers have had to contend with
exceptionally challenging trading conditrions
ang thewr focus centinues to be on value for
money ond certainty Understanding and
responding to therr needs and delivering
excellent progects safely, on ume and on
budget are at the heart of our business goals
In2012 we delivered some outstanding
projects across the UK from the headquarters
for American Express in Brighton to innovative
work for the Metropolitan Police and new
affordable housing os port of the Kirklees
Excellent Homes for Life PFI We have
continued to grow our market posmon in
educction socal housing, banking ond
responsive mantenance

To ensure that we provide real value to

aur customers we haove made greater use

of collaborative tools such as Bulding
Information Modelling (BIM) This brings
together all the mfarmation gbout a building s
design and construction and enobles us to
develap more pificient, cast-effective and
sustainabdle sofutions for our customers

We oare already using BIM on a number of
projecls and recognise its long term benefils
for customers and for the Wates Group

We have also introduced a new commerceal
and procurement structure which integrates
actmities across our businesses and enables
us to cffer greater efficiencies (o our
customers Central professional procurement
also means that we have been able to
strengthen our relutionships with our
strotegic supply chon partners

To help us manage our retationshups with
our customers we have made good use of
our new CRM system 10 now widely used
across the business and rs vital In supporting
customer relotionships marketing and
busmess planning We have also nvested
agreat deal of time and energy n building
stronger retationships with exisiing custormers
Our best source of future quality business is
tedoy s custorners and we are very pleased
with the leve of repeat busingss

OUR PRIORITIES FOR 2013

In addition to safety, our focus n 20131510
continué {0 strengthen gur balance sheet and
we wil look to leveroge our fingncl position
through further careful Investment ond

busiriess growth Winming the nght projects
at the nght price terms and condihons will be
key In 2013 as competiion intensifies

We are focusing onsmarter bidding for
projects so that the opportunities for margin
enhancemert and the avoldance @i nisk are
managed better nght from the start We are
commutted to delivering hugh quality projects
ontime on budget for all our customers with
aclear tocus on professiongl project delivery
which will underpin our finuncral perfarmance

In the year ghaad we will continue to focus
on what we do best delivering outstanding
projects for our customers providing support
far the communities in which we work and
developmg the skills of our employees

NEW OPPORTUNITIES

While the economic outlook remains uncertain
there are stitl many new opportunities availlable
to our businesses We have been working

with the energy supplier npower as part of

the Government s Commuuty Energy Saving
Programme {CESP) This requires energy
suppliers to deliver energy-saving measures
such as bulding insilation to domestic
canstreers In specdc law-income areas of

the UK Living Spocehas already ganed ©
signiicant share of the market From 2013
enerQy supphers wil support the insulatton of
homes and reguce the costs of heatng to on
offordobie level under o new schome — Lhe
Energy Company s Obiigation (ECQ) We are
supporting social londlords in improving the
energy efhoency of ther homes by goining
access to the funds avarlable under these
energy suppliers programmes

The UK faces a significant housing shortage
and, slong with our industry peers we will
cantinue to make the case to the government
that there1s @ need for new housing and that
capital expenditure s the most effective woy to
stmulate the economy In the meontime we are
exploring innovative ways in which we can form
jant ventures to fund new housing

Our expertise In the education sector also
ofters new opportunilies and we are pomoting
our Adapt School Solutions programme
which enables local cuthorities to convert
existing cammeraial buildings into pnmary and
secondary schools er to create new buildings
eihciently ond cost effectively

Above all it’s about people




£295m

WORK WON IN 2013 TD DATE

The mtegration of Linbrook also enables

US 10 Qrow our presence In the responsive
maintenance sector We have olready signed
a new framework with Town and Cauntry
Housing Assocation in Tunbridge Wells and
we are looking 10 continue 1o grow this area of
our business nationally

WATES PEOPLE

As Emeet Wates people on srte and at our
ofhces, thewr enthusiosm commitment and
professionalism never fails to inspire me
Qur people are what moke Wotes the
company it s 1 am very proud of the
attievemnents of all our employees in

whaot hos been o 1ough yeor but Ywoult

like to mentign in particular James Wates
who was oworded o CBE for his services

to construction and the chantable sector
and Huw Davies who was appointed as the
HRH, The Prince of Wales Ambassadaor for
the South Eosi region of Businessn the
Commurity In addition | would like to thank
the Waotes team that scaled Kilimanjaro and
rorsed over £60 000 for our chanty portner
Barnardo s and everyone that took part s
our annual Wotes Community Day donating
8 700 hours to over 30 different projects

SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES

\We recognise that business 15 0 powerful
force for good In society A commitment to
supporting the communities in which we work
15 embedded in everything we do and 1s shared
by everyone at Wates We have continued

to support local commumnities across the

UK creating local employment ond training
gpportumities fmsing the asprrations and skills
of young people and providing ways n which
our people can give something back We
supparted 2 400 students through Business
Class eventsin the 201172012 ocedemic year
and more than 616 adults have taken part n
oul Bullding Futures progromme to dote

We were pleased to be able to colloborate
with other companies 1n the construction
industry in the Prince s Trust Get nto
Construction Programme which offers work
experience to young peopie aged 18-25
Together we helped 700 young people
through this programme in 2012

COMPANY LEADERSHIP

wouid bike to thonk the Wotes famiy and
members of the Group Boaord for ther
guidance and Support over the last yeer

The Wotes fomily hos worked for 4 generctions
to ensure thot the business delivers the highest
quahty work for our customers and also

gives samething back to the communites we
serve Wates combines the stobility longewty
and volues of a family-run business with the
dynarmsm ond innovotive thinking thot wil take
the business forward for future generaiions

There have been a number of changesto the
wates Group Board duning 2012

1would lke to express our thonks and
gppreciation to Nick MocAndrew for his
committed and most valuable ¢entribution to
the Wates Group Board over the post 9 yvears
and for his dikgent leadershup of the Audd
Commuttee for much of that ime Nickretired
atthe AGMin 2012 We also announced that
Fntz Ternofsky would retire at the forthcoming
AGM and | take this opportunity to thank im
for his suppert and contribution over the past
6 years and for hus thoughtful leadership of the
Remuneration Comrmuttee

We were very pleased to welcome Dawvid
Barclay to the Board n October 2012 and
welcomed Deena Mattar i Februnry 2013

| thank lon Burnett Manoging Directos of
Wates Living Space until December 2012, for
his contribution to Wates over 18 years ond we
were plegsed to welcome Andy Hobart os his
sUccessor inJanuory 2013

Rod Stewart left the Groupin October toreturn
to managmg an nternationat Civik engineenng
consultancy As the Group Production Orector
for the past 2 years Rod provided leadership
and orgomsational structure to our operations
ond suppoit functions He rs Succeaded by
John Howell who wilt build on the progress
made to further improve project delivery ond
technical leadershup

Business and Financial Overview

[ D | Chasrman ond Chief Executive’s Review
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Business ond Financial Review
Governance
Accounts
Dther farmation

OUTLOOK

We do not expect recovery n the UK

construction market untf ot leost 2014

Comaany reputation can make all the

difference to winning new business and |
retainng existing customers Wates brand .
volues commitment to safety corporate

responsiility ond abiity to deliver high-

quahty projects all stand us in good stead

We have areputation for cregtng nnovative

solutions for example in our work with the

Metropolitan Police and our Adapt School

Solutions programme We also have

reputation for rekability and stabibity in an

increosingly uncertain masket

We are proud to be a 4th generation famiby-
owned business with 116 years of expenence
behd us and we are here for the long term for
our customers communities and employees
‘We ore inanciolly strong wdoy and we ore
commited to remaning so in the future

Our aim 1s to continue io enhance Wates
position as one of the UK's leading companies
In the bugt environment and our expenence
professional people and strong relationships
with customers and our supply chain wilf help
us to achreve that goal

%M T Biechaleo

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chawrman and Chief Executve

Wates Annual Repart gnd Accounts 2012




FOCUS
POISE
AGILITY

In a word, Wates
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Business and Financial Review

Inspire: Luton
Sports Village

To nspire peaple of all ages and abileties to
take up sport and to dramatically improve
leisure facilities in the town Luton Borough
Council commussioned Wates to Create g
£26m world-class SO0m swimm:ng pool
diving centre and sports hall

In addihon to the 8 lane pool that is capable
of halding national swimming competitions
with space for 424 spectotors we built o

20 meitre 4lone community pool {with
moveable floor) o dry diving facility with
floor mounted trampelines and hornesses
ta altow divers to practice in sofety a 100
stokton gym exercise studios group cycling
room and cofé It was a challenging project
50 we took on lessons learned best practice

and peer review We had to deal with tight
dimensional tolerances particularly wih
the 19 metre precast dwing boord in order
to meet the exacting stondards set out for
competinon swimming pools We also had
to deal with an archaeological dig ond very
severe weather conditions dunng the early
stoges of the project

The centre row called inspire, was officiofly
opened in Dctober ond true to its name is
inspiring locois to get fitter and healther

The outstanding facihittes have also otirocted
the attention of Olympic bronze medalist
Tom Baley, who has Mmed Splush a TV
celebrity diving competition in the poal

Govemance

Accounts

Other infermation

“This centre
will help to
regenergte

the town and
move Luton
into ¢ different
leogue in terms
of leisure

and sporting
faciities.”

Lord McKenzie
of Luton

Wates Annuel Report and Accounts 2012




SUSTAINABLE
EFFICIENT
INSPIRING

In a word, Wates




“tam proud to have been a part
of providing o university facility
that is undoubtedly among the
best in the UK. The university
hos invested in the Alan Gilbert
Learning Commons Building to
create a multitude of innovative,
technology-rich faciities that
create an uitra-modem, high
guality and stimulating space
dedicated to the students where
they are free to relax and leorn.
To see their delight and
enthusiasm in using the building
1s truly rewarding.”

Shane Benson, Project Manager

Business and Finoncig! Overview

Chowrrnan and Chief Executive s Review
‘ [;| Cose studies

Business and Financiol Review

Governance

Accounts

Other information

The Alan Gilbert Learning Commons,
University of Manchester

The University of Manchester 15 thelargest
university i the UK with almost 40 000
students and an extensive campus It wonted
to create a focal point at the heart of the
University where students cowld get together
and learn, either on an mdvidual basis or
coltaboratively in groups It1s basedon the
Learning Commans cancept developed in
the US ond Austrolia

The result is the Afan Getbert Learming
Commons a £12m state of the art
sustainable facdity that offers o sumulating
secure environment for studying 24 hours
aday The project focused on energy
conservation and sustainability rmegasures
In the bullding design and construction
processes to create o world-class faalty

The work included the re-cladding and
complete hit-cut of an existing 1960s
cancrete tower blgck which was orgally
4 storeys and has now been reduced to
4 storeys ond the construction of o

new extension

Reusing the exsting concrete bulding frame
ond foundations resulted in reduced project
timne, lower costs and carbon footprint and
less waste The bulding achieved o BREEAM
Excellent roting with @ score of 72 49 and will
generate 10% of the energy needed on wite
The bullding 15 heated by a steam main on the
uarversity campus and also includes

a passive ventilation system and solor
heating supplements

Wates Annucl Report ond Accounts 2012
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In a word, Wates




Building Futures —
Gateways
to Oldham

Many communities across the UK lock real
employment opportunities Since 2005

we have been running a ploneenngreturn to
work / training progromme cclied Building
Futures which helps people goin the skills and
traiming they need to maoke the move Into
employment or further educatton

Buginess ond Finoncol Overview

Charman and Chief Executive s Review

lkl Case studies

Business and Financial Review

Gavernance

Accounts

Qther mformation

“I'm learmng

so much on

site and really
lookmg forward
to becoming a
fully quahfied
plumber The
team ! work with
ore great and |
appreciote them
showing me the
ropes.”

Chris Yarwood,
Appreatice Plumber

In Oldham where Wates Livng Space i

working on the £7im Gateways to Cldhom PFI

we have worked with our supply chain

and the local Council’s Employability Teom
10 provide training n construction skells
and career gutdance workshaps In 2012
we provided 2,824 weeks of pard

employment helped 227 local residents into

employment and o further 95 into traiming

foanne lameson, Regional Managing
Director for Wates Living Space says
We have clways imtended our work on

Gateways ko Otdnom to be used as a catalyst

for boosting opportunities for local people
The condidates have shown real promise

and our programme of troining and practical
work expenence hos qiven them a chance to

develop ther obwvious talent”

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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MODERN
PROFESSIONAL
CREATIVE

In a word, Wates




John Laing

Wates hos oiong stonding relgtionship
with infrostructure specralists fohnLaing
50 when it had to move from its head ofice
- which wos being demotished as part of
aregeneration programme in Victona
London —1t asked us to work on the £1 6m
nterrar fit-out of its new flagshup buiding

One Kingsway is ¢ pnme central London
mixed-use new build development behind

on onginal hsted fagade John Lang has taken
the Ist ond 2nd floors of the building ond
needed ¢ modern, professional and fiexible
space to représent its business We prowided
aquality it-out In just 13 weeks

Business and Financral Qverview

Chorman and Chief Executive s Review

i {)‘ Cose studies

Business and Fmoncial Review

Governance

Accounts

Other information

“The Wates
site team were
fantastic to
work with and
delwereda
quality job
under a tight
timeframe.”

Duncon Bnsbane,
Senior Development
Marager Jehn Lang

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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FLEXIBLE
RESPONSIVE
COMMITTED

In a word, Wates




Marks and Spencer

We have been working with Morks and
Spencer for 12 years on a ronge of fit-outs
and refurbishment projects Our most recent
work for the retailer s the upgrading of its
in-store bakenes nationwide from Devon to
the North ot Scotland to give them the look
and feel of an artisan baker Rather than
creating new stores, Marks and Spencers
focus is currently on moximising the value

of its existing outfets ondimproving the
brand expenence for consumers As pant

of that strategy we are also installing dell
counters that sell o range of upmarket

fresh pasta, charcutene cheeses ond other
products, intended to odd a sense of theatre
toits food halls Bath projects have a total
value of £10m

The work is logistically challenging as it
has to be carried out overright so that
trading 1s not disrupted The bokeries
toke between 4 and 7 nights and the delis
up 10 6 weeks

We have worked closely with Marks and
Spencer to ensure that we are flexible and as
responsive to therr needs as possible so that
customers and stalf ore not inconvenienced
by the work The bakeries and the delis hove
been very successful and have led to an
Increase In sates

Business and Financicd Overview

Charrman and Chief Executive s Review

1D ] cose studies

Busmess and Finonciol Review

Governance

Accounts
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“Our relationship with Wates Retail
has grown stronger over many
years end is based on a high level
of trust. Wates provides us with
hugh quality, innovative people who
take on more responsibdity with
every project they undertake for
us. We value the on-time, budget
and quality certainties that result
from our purtnershup with Wates.”

Richard Gillies,
Director of Plan A at Marks and Spencer

Wiates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Kirklees —
Excellent Homes
for Life

Wates Living Space is currently building
445 new high quality affordoble homes for
rent across 34 different sites in Kirklees

The project which will have on

immensely pesitive impact upon the local
neghbourhoads and communities includes
the new-buld of 140 homes for older people
- offenng care and support 291 Tand 2
hedroom hames for smaller households

ond 42 homes speciically designed for
wheelchar users

As part of our work in Kirklees we are
actively engaging with the local community
in order to provide tongible traning
opportuniies and maximise the impact

of the scheme upon the local economy
This mcludes the creation of a total of

8 apprentice opportunities 18 tramnee
positions and the annual provision of 4
1-week work placements throughout the
course of the project

Business and Financial Overview

Charrman and Chief Executive s Review

(D] Cose studies

Business and Financiol Review

Governance

Accounts

Qther information

“Wates has completed 44 unets
out of 445, 1 and 2 bedroomed
units These have been completed
to o very hugh standard and
ahead of programme. This hos
helped enable us to keep tenant
satisfaction levels higher

thon onticpoted Wotes hos
performed professionafly and has
continuously strived to improve
throughout the project.”

Daniel Mulhall, Pinnacle

Wates Annucl Report and Accounts 2012
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Community Energy
Saving Programme

The UK government s £350m Community
Energy Saving Programme (CESP) 15 funded
by energy suppliers and s intended to
improve energy ethictency, reduce fuel buls
and tackle the 1ssue of fuel poverty infow
income households Dunng 2012 Wates
Living Space was awarded £40m of CESP
work Among the schemes we ve been
involved in are 2 projects in Coventry to make
energy saving improvements for WMHousing
Groug to over 900 Whitefriars homesin
Willenhall and 285 in Henley

The work mcluded wstalling replacement
botlers double glazing external wall insutation
and photovoltaic panels At the Willenhall
scheme glone 188 PV installotions ware
completed utihsing the government’s
Feed-in-Tanif scheme While on sije we also
undertook o range of other works to mprove
the overall appearance of the homes

The programme aiso provided & week
work plocements where stuedents surveyed
residents on thew energy bills and usoge
The exercise wilt be repeated next yeor io
trock the benefits of the scheme

Business and Financiol Overvicw

Chairman end Chief Exacutive s Review

[_D | Case studies

Business and Finanaiol Review

Gavernance

Accounts

Other information

“It’s cheaper for us to heat the
house now. It has made a huge
difference, especially during

the cold weather. It looks 100%
better now that the rendening has
been done and it will meke a real
difference to the commumty”

Koren Spence. Whitefriors resident

Waotes Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Picket Piece,
Andover

The Wates Developments team work on the
most challenging and complex of sites

QOver 9 years the business brought iogether
43 londowners comprising 25 different
landholdings to create the ist phose of
alarge new viflage development outside
Andover n Hompshire

Following a planning refusol by the Test
Valley Distrct Councitin 2010 Wates
Developrnents opted to pursue a planning
consent on appeal We chose to positwely
engcge with the local community,gathenng
local and political support Wates
Developments presénted the scheme as
the onswer to Test Volley District Council's
housing shortfall and won the support

of Enc Picktes MP Secretary of Stateior
Communities and Local Government

who granted the consent in 2011

Business and Financial Overview

Chairman and Chief Executive s Review

[ B | case studies

Busliness and Fincncial Review

Gevernance

Accoumts

Other information

The team worked hard to conclude
complex land value negotiotions with
landowners which enobled the purchase
ond sole of this site N0 o partnership with
David Witson Homes ond building

of the scheme 15 5000 to commence
Wates Developments is now committed
to debvenng the 2nd phose o further 470
homes and ensuning the development of
this new vifage 15 successfully integrated
Into the existing community

The Developments Team is committed

to growing our portfolio of land investments
avery year and to continue doing whot

we do best setective investment in the

best sites in the best locations, working

with the best partners to develop much-
needed new homes

43

landowners

25

pieces of land

9 years of

negotiotion

oew

development

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Design company
PINCH expands
with Needspace?

Award-winning furniture product and
interior desggn company PINCH moved
nto the Claphom North Arts Centre run

by Needspace? in 2009 ond 1s now in its
4th phase of expanston Into adjacent units
at the site

Needspace? provides flexible managed
workspace and gives growing businesses the
flexsbility they need to thrive Russell Pinch
owner of the eponymous design company
says  We were [ooking for an architecturally
nteresting environment and o company that
would be prepared to offer us real Hiextbdity in
terms of the décor end dressing of our space
to provide o showroom for our products
Needspace? gllowed the business to repaint
and install new lighting and a wood-burming
stove “They ve worked with us well beyond
what you d normally expect of a londlord and
tenant arrangement and hove allowed us 10
creqte the right sort of environment for our
business to fliounsh Theres a brilhant buzz
about the place,” he says

Business and Financial Qverview

Chmrman and Chief Executive s Review
m Cose studies

Business and financiol Review

Governance

Accounts

Qther information

“Needspace? has given us

the flexibility to transform on
interesting architectural space
mto a fithing studio and showroom
for PINCH, They are far more
personabte, dynamic and daring
than ony landlords we hove
previously worked with.”

Russell Pinch, Dwner PINCH

waotes Annual Report ond Accounts 2012
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l Business Review I

2012
BUSINESS
REVIEW

Wates delivered another

sohd performance in 2012 despite

continuing uncertainty 1n the UK economy
and difficult market conditions for the
construction industry as a whole

Cur henitage, inancral stabihty and
willingness to adapt to meet our chents’
changing needs means that we have
continued to deliver 1st class projects for
existing chents and to win new business in
an extremely competitive market

Among the projects we have delivered this
year are Inspire Luten Sports Village, high
quality stores for Wottrose and Marks and
Spencer Simpiy Food. the new Prudentigl
Regulation Authonty’s headquarters for
the Bank of England and the refurbishment
of Somerset House We also started an
innovative PFl contract defivering 445 new
homes. 44 of whichwere handed over to
the people of Kirklees in 2012

New homes for Luton

Wates Living Spoce has completed

the Ist phose of a series of projects to
build 450 new affordable homes to reduce
the ocute housing shortage in the town
Phose | of the New Homes for Luton
scheme has provided 16 apprenticestups
for Luton s residents and 12 work
expenence placements forlocal 6th form
college students
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EXTENDING OUR CAPABILITIES

Wotes Living Space s o leading affordable
housing contractor and enjoyed @ very
successful year in 2012 with a turnover of
E455m* Among the highkghis was our work
for Ortit Homes on the Larner Road Estate
in Erith in the London Borough of Bexley

it s one of the largest projects of s type n
London and involves replacing 6 high-nse
blocks with 343 family homes

A significant proportion of our turnover
was due to the successfulintegration of
Linbrook in 2011 which hos put the busingess
ut the forefront of the UK s offardable
housing market This enables usto offer

a fully ;ntegrated range of senices from
new-buid torefurbishment and energy
efficiency soluhions as well as ncreasing
our presence n the £4bn responsive
mamntenance sectar It 0lso offers us

the potennal to develop respansive
rraintenance nationally ond m new sectors
such as educanon and public buldings

Dunng 2012 bLinbrook renewed a number

of existing trameworks It wos also awarded

a contract with the London Borough of
Harrow for £1im over 5 years and the London
Borough of Comden - its biggest wn of the
year (£40m over 5 yeors) It s glso working as
part of a new venture with Town and Country
Housing Association in Tunbridge Wells using
an nnovitive model thal provides significant
hnancial benehts.

* inchicing share of ;ont vertuees and associcte

SEIZING NEW OPPORTUNITIES
IN THE ENERGY SECTOR

wates Living Space has ¢lso benehted
enormously from its strength and expenence
in the energy sector Dunng 2012 we

were awarded £40m of work as part efthe
Government s Community Energy Saving
Programme (CESP) — a szeoble share of the
market CESP s funded by energy suppliers
and ams loumprave eneigy efficiency reduce
fuel bills und tackle the (ssue of fuel poverty

in low-income households Our role nvolved
msulotng itomes and instalhng new bolers
and solar panels In 2013 o ntew scheme

ECO — the Energy Company s Obligation —

will be ingrodiiced to prowde efficient centrat
heaung and msulation to the most vulnerable
peopie m society We are éxploring the

most eftective ways to deliver our energy
commitments and serve communites through
local employment and traming programmes
with energy suppliers

Business end Fancial Overview

Charrmon and Chief Executive s Review

Cose studies
I D] Business and Finanaal Review

Governance

Accounts
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DEVELOPING INNOVATIVE IDEAS TO DEAL
WITH THE HOUSING SHORTAGE

One of the biggest 1ssues facing the UK today
15 Ihe shortoge of new affordable housing
Wates Living Space 15 working in partnership
with the Homes and Communities Agency
Arm s-Length Manogement Qrgomsations
{ALMOs) housng assoctations and locol
authorities, to provide new komes in jont
venlures using nnovative fingnciod sclutions

Qur extensive track record and experence
means that we are an ideal partner for local
authonties and housing cssociations to
step up to the challenge of prowiding much
needed uffordoble housing across the UK
The business delivered 22,600 new and
refurbished homes duning 2012 working with
131 chfferent chients responding to 138 000
different jobs

Linbrook invests in new venture
with Town and Country

The Linbrook team has lounched o
new venture with Town and Country
Housing Group called Countrywise
Repairs, which will deliver o repairs
service 10 almost 6,800 propertiesin
the Tunbridge Wells oreo und creote
employment for local pecple

Larner Road Estate, Erith

Living Space 1s creating 343 family
homes i the 1st phese of a £128m
housing scheme for Qrbit Housing
Associotion to create a total of 523
new homes Ortit Homes managng
director Paul High says “Wates Living
Space has a fantastic track record of
delivering high quaiity hames We are
delighted to be working with them to
transform thus arec”

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012




I Business Review ,

“THE WATES DEVELOPMENTS
TEAM DEMONSTRATES
DRIVE, PASSION AND
PROFESSIONALISM IN THEIR
APPROACH TQ PLANNING
THEIR COMMITMENT TO A
COLLABGRATIVE APPROACH
AT THE ARBORFIELD MAIOR
EXPANSION IS LEADING THE
WAY IN ENGAGING POSITIVE
COMMUNITY SUPPORT FOR
THE DEVELOPMENT OF 2.000
NEW HOMES”

HENRY SCRASE. LANDOWNER.
Aegeon Trust Company Limited

Commumity engagement at the
Arborfeld major expansion

Waotes Developments embarked ona
series of successful workshops involving
local commumty groups providing the
opportunity to teke part in the design of
the settlement expansion for 2 Q00 new
homes 3 schools and a retail centre

King Harry Park, St. Alhans

Wates Developments working in
partnership with Linden Homes, lounched
1ts 13-acre prime ssite King Horry Park,
close to the histone centre of St Albans
and will deliver 150 1 to 5 bedroom
homes between 2012 and 2014 The site
promises to be gr outstanding success

DEVELOPMENTS TEAM
BUILD ON SUCCESS

Wates Developments delivered very strong
resudts in 2012 Success was achieved through
our focused strategy in land investment and
residential development The key retumns

were secured from lond transoctions and

tugh perlforrmung residential joint venture
investments with some of the UK s leading
house bullderss

O bnonciol strength cormorote stobibty
and commitment 10 residential development
make us & strong and aitroctive partner for
both landowners and develapers Wates
Developmenis’ unique blend of skills and
expertse in lond acquisition and plannmg
combined with commercial gcumen produces
winning developmertts. This approach hos
enabled us to acqure some of the best
development opportunities in the best
locations in Lendon and the South East

In 2012 we successfully secured planning
consent for a number of important residential
schemes A key focus for the business was our
new villoge development at Picket Piece ,
Ist phose 62-acre scheme near Andover In
Hampshire with consent for over 530 homes
In o complex site assembly, bringing together
43 ardterent landowners and 25 land holdngs
we successfully managed the acquisition and
sale of the site enterning into a partnership with

David Wilson Homes Dver the next 10 years
we will deliver tn excess of 1 000 new homes
and a wide range of neighbourhoed facilities

wates Developments also secured valuable
plonning permission on appeol for the
re-tdevelopment of 0 3 acre subterranean
reservalr site in West Hompstead London
winning acclaim far the development s

high guality and mnavative design for 16
five-bedroom homesin o sensitive location
Further consents in East Grinstead, Worthing
and Cranleigh were ochieved, creating o
strong plarform for future Jont ventures
Duning 2012 we secuwed a range of sites
adding 207 acres ta our existing land partiolo
throughout Londonand the South East now
totaling over 2 400 acres

Wates Developments focus for the yeor oheod
remains constant, to secure more new land and
ta continue to succeed in delivering plannng
permission, bolancing the needs of londowners
and therr desire 1o cpurmise vaiue wnth the
needs of local communities for well-designed
and beneficial developments. We will conunue
Lo support our portiers by investing in new
house building joint ventures despite the
on-going challenge of the housing merket

We plan to continue growing our exposure 1o
some of the best new devetopments in London
and the South East

28

Above alt it s about people



MEETING OUR CUSTOMERS'
CHANGING NEEDS

Our customers are facing challenging times
Contuing uncertainty about the economic
chmate meons thot they are seeking ever-
greater value for money ond thew needs

are chonging The focus of our niencrs ond
retall customers has generally switched from
mgjor copral programmes towards asset
management and upgrading existing stores
rnd offices where necessary rather than
NVeSHng N new ones

Wates hes responded to its customers shift

i focus by integroting its Intenors and Retail
businesses under one leaderskip to provide

a noyonal nfrastructure so thot 1t con bester
serve its custamers from Cornwall to the north
of Scotland across thewr entire portfolios

Bringing the 2 businesses together
deepens ond strengthens our operational
and commercial tears, giving us more
flexibility, enabling us to share knowledge
and resources and prowding greater
responsiveness to customers

We are focused on delivenng mtenor and
retaid ht-outs for example, the new Prudentol
Regulation Authanty s hecdquarters for the
Bonk of England structural re-engineenng

such as Royal Maill extensions and the
refurbrshment of their distrnbution fochities
and the nationat roll-out of high volume work
for example in-store bakenes and dels in
Marks and Spencet stores ocross the UK

LONG TERM REPEAT RELATIONSHIPS

Today we are focusing on delivering for
major hgh street retad bronds supermarkets
retail landlords and their shopping centres
hanking public and private offices ncluditg
our collaboration with our Construction
business to deliver the base build and

ht-out tor the new Microsoft researrh
headquarters in Cambnidge

The banlang and office sector continues (o
be a growing part of the Wates ntenors and
Retail business and we ore delighted tobe a
part of the Lloyds One Contractor Allonce
delivering colloboratively wath partners high
street branches offices andg enticol dota
facilities across the UK We have a longterm
relationship with Amencon Express, having
completed over 22 successiul projects with
them We ore currently warking with them
toccmplete the 377 000 sq it ht-outof its
headguoarters in Brighton and also with DLA
Piper onne M-oul o its offices in London
We are working closely with retail londlords

Waitrose, Bedford — Structurat
re-engineering and Fit-Out

This structurgl re-engineering ft-out
involved the refurbishment of an existing
furniture store in Bedford to create o
new Woitrose store The project provided
a fantastc opportunity to revitalise an
under-used site and to deliver substantial
benefits to the town including o
significant number of new jabs
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such as Land Secunihies for whom we have
worked on the refurtuishment of the 02
Shopping Centre on Finchley Road n London
and Hommerson on upgrades to the Oracle
Shopping Centre in Reading

Asda Tesco and Maorks and Spencer are
cusiomers for whom Wates Intenors ond
Retail s working on o high volume roll- out

of in-store pharmacies calés bakenes and
Click and Collect facilities Far Royal Moil we
are creating regiong! distnbution centres, and
we have fitted out par} of the Selindqes store
in the Traftord Centre

In the iast year Wates Intenors and Retaif has
delvered aver 1 000 projects across the UK.
Oiten logistically chollenging, working in live
environments of working out of hours — at
mght ond durmg the wegkend ~ 50 that our
customers trade s not disrupted

Lloyds Bank —
National Roll Qut

Wa have worked on a wide range of
projects for Lioyds Bank from overnight
PLinstullavons m High Street
branches, to office refurbishments al!
with minimal disruption to trading

Our work on the Lloyds Bonk framewark
will continue throughout 2013

Wates Annuaci Report and Accounts 2012
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I Busmess Review ,

Selfridges, Trofford Centre,
Manchester - Refurblshment
and Fit-0ut

This high-profile re-fit m one ot the world s
most famous departmant stores had to

be meticulousiy ptonned over 3 phases
Our highly expenenced professional design
and retail teams worked closely with
concept designers and internal Selfndges
stakeholders ta great effect to ensure
minimum disruption to trading

Wates Internationol, Abu: Ohabs

In December 2012 Wates internotional
held a topping out cerermony at the

Al Foo g and Al Zakhar schools i Al

Ain, Abu Dhati The chent expressed its
sousfoctian at the progress made on
both projects which have an outstanding
safety record and are ahead of
schedule [hgritanes in attendance
wara particulatty delighted to learn
about the traditions of topping out and
were amused to hear that the biggest
chatlenge for the site team was locating
an evergreen branch for the ceremony

ADOPTING NEW WAYS OF WORKING

As our customers needs have changed

so has our own way of working In arder to
deliver igh volume projects we hove had 10
pecome much more odoptoble Hlextie and
responsive While competttion in the market
1s.intense we have 1oken a sensible approgch
to pnang so thet we know we can deliver on
our proruse on iime and on budget safely
Our experience enables us to work closely
with our customers to dive inefhciencies out
of the process ond to explore new woys of
working We have professional partnerships
n place thot enable us to respond to
customers’ needs faster and mare eficiently
with the conhidence thar qualty ond sofety
are not compromised

NEW OPPORTUNITIES

The noture of the retaik business environment
15 evolving rapidly The growth of internet
shoepping means that retaters have 1o work
much harder to provide consumers with

an expenence thot will encourage themto
come into stores This provides us with new
business opporturities. Marks and Spencer
for example, 15 roling-out in-store bakenes
and delis to enhance the shopping experience
and Waotes intenors and Retait hos worked
onover 292 of them We re also working with
Tesco onats Click and Collect cancept which
offers customers the henelits of shopping
online with the added conventence of picking
up thew grocenes ot a time that suits them

in the uffice morket we are ¢lso seeing

new opportunities to deliver igh quahty
refurtishment projects Companies are less
likely to mvest in new office huildings in difficult

umes but to keep their employees motivated
and to boost productvity they ore refreshing
theiwr workspaces Our éxperience means we
are well ploced to toke cdvontage of renewed
activity in this sector In 2012, we delivered
hgh quality, projects for @ number of Clients
including the Home Oflice the Mimistry of
lustice, the Bank of England, American Exprass
DLA Piper and John Lamng We also completed
Otympic hosputality sustes for Oeloitte and
American Express

Both Inteniors and Retanl operated throughout
the year in extremely challenging trading
conditions, and consequently expenenced
some disappointing outcomes However

we remnmin confident thot tur extensive
copabilites longstanding refationships with
some of the UK s best brands, and agiity In
responding to customers needs are just some
of the teasans why customers continue to
choose Wates Intenors and Retail

CUR CONTINUED FOCUS
ON LANDMARK BUILDINGS

During 2012 Wates Construction worked

with a number of clients to produce

landmark buldings In Cambndge we've
created a new state-of-the-art, 78,000 sq it
flogship headquorters for Microsoft Research,
enabling this globalleader to relocate to
Cambndge cily cenlre with suificiont space 1o
support its future growth We've also worked
with Great Portland Estates on Marcol House
(poge 26) a commercial development on

3 omalgamated sites on the corner of
London ¢ Regent Street and Margaret Street
Itincludes o new 7 floor modern office
burlding on Margoret Street which is clad in
Partland 5tone to match the existing grade i
Iisted fagade on Regent’s Street The building
has achieved o BREEAM Excellent roting and
provides enhonced ste iodiversity through
the introduction of @ iving green roof

This was g challenging project as the bar and
restaurant operading In the ground floor unit
remained open throughout the development
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DEVELOPING HIGH QUALITY
SCHOOLS ACROSS THE UK

Our education teom has continued to
delver high qualty facihties across the

UK irom pre-school centres to prmary

and secondary schools and to university
builldings Our expertise in this area 1s welt
recognised ond in 2012 we completed work
on the £lim Compsmount Technology
College in Doncaster, which featured heawvily
in the James Review of capital spending

on schools as on example of best practice
demonstrating how to build new schoals
more ciiciontly and 1o prowide better value
for money We are also working on the £30m
Dxons Allerton Academy in Bradiord which
will provide high quality learming foctities for
chitdren aged between 3and 18

Ouring 2012 we also worked on the £42m
Brrminghom Prmary Places Programme
The aity has to cope with ¢ dramatically
increasing birth rate and needs to

provide & 000 addihional schoo! places
Wates Construction bullt extensions to

20 existing primary schocls taking on
average 65 months each The project
used innovotive Cross Laminated Timber
{CLT) technology which uses spruce boards
stacked at right angles and glued together
inlayers Its fost effective ond belonces
aesthetics with robustness We were able o
deliver schog! extensions without intruding
on the school umetable or day-to-day
operations Inaddition the use of CLT saved
£6m and delivered substantiol carbon
savings of 4 262 tonnes

Our aim for 2013 1s to be one of theleading
players in the government s £2 4bnPriority
Schools Bulding Progromme which will
facus capital spending on those schools
most in need of nvestment rebuilding

and refurbishment We are also focusing
onretaining our place on the Natonal
Acodemies Framework which will beup for
renewalin 2013, and on retaining our current
POSIGON by WINNIMY new work on regional
frameworks The Free Schools progromme
also offcrs new opportumties which we will
actively pursue

DELIVERING SCHODLS FASTER
AND MORE COST EFFECTIVELY

Our patented ADAPT Schoot Solutions
programme whtch enables local authonues
to convert existing commercial butldings
such os offices inta schoots ond to creale
new buldings ar sigrihicantly lower ~ost

was launched in 2011 and has attrocted
nterest from central gnd local govenment
Using a ground-treaking new model which
standardises design ADAPT cuts the
construction phase of new school delivery,
typically from 60 weeks to just 36 weeks

and can create capital savings of 40% for
new-buid and 60% for refurbtishments it 1s
fast offordople and tlexible ond provides high
qualty learming enmaronments where siugdents
feelinspred We have enhonced the product
added morce efficiencies and are planning Lo
promote it during 2013 to meet the urgent
need for a more eficient ond cost -eftective
way to dehver schoot places

Djanogly Northgate Academy,
Nottingham

We are working on the £2 15m expansion
of the school s buildings to coter for
growing demand for student places

The project sncludes the cregtion of 8 new
flexible classrooms @ purpose burdt unit
to provide ¢ further 236 places for local
chiidren and an external play area
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Charman and Chief Executive § Review
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Dixons Allerton Academy, Bradford

This £30m project has mvolved the
transformation of an exsting secondary
school in Bradford to create Dixons
Allerton Academy an nspinng educationa!
faciity for chuldren from pnmary age

to 6th form, specialising n health and
science As port of Wates commuitment
to the local community we tock part

in the UKCG’s Open Doors Weekend at
the Academy which gave people the
opporunny to tour the site iearn more
about its development and find out obout
some of the extiting career opportunities
avaitoble in construction,

De Warenna Academy,
Doncaster

We used our ADAPT School Solutions
programme to remodel and upgrade
exishng teaching fociities end refurbish
the sports holt The project took just

54 weeks ond the school remained
operational dunng that time

Wates Annual! Report and Actounts 2012
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I Business Review ’

“GUR SURVEY SHOWS THAT
MANY UNIVERSITIES ARE
ALREADY ONTHE FRONT

FOOT AND AREINVESTING IN

IST CLASS BULBINGS AND
FACILITIES INORDER TO ATTRACT
STUBENTS AND TALENT WHILE
IMPRQVING EFFICIENCY AND
CONTROLLING COSTS™

LAN VICKERS
Regional Managing Director —
Construction London ond Scuth

SUCCESS IN THEUNIVERSITY SECTOR

Universitres are animportant sector for
Wates and our education team continues

to deliver high quatity stimulating learning
environments for siudents ond stolt We often
work on live campuses where disruption
must be kept to o mimmum

Among the projects we are working onis the
£54m Boldrewood Campus ot the Unversy
of Southampton This new facility, which aims
to position the University as an Engimeerng
Centre of Excellence, will incorporate the
Lloyds Register Group Technology Centre
The University Engineering Cantre of
Excellence and willeventually house anew
institute for Marme and Menibime Research

We are also working with the University of
Essex South EssexCallege of Further and
Higher Education and Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council ong £22m project caifed
the Forum = ¢ newibrary and learning
faciity which provides the growing number
of students wn Southend with a tugh-quality
hbrary galtery and stote-of-the-art research
and learning facilities
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POTENTIALFOR FURTHER GROWTH

Universities foce a challenging future

with cuts in pubhc funding of 12 6% and
faling student applcations However

we commissioned research that shows that
many unwversities are already on the front-
foot and are investing mn 1st ¢lass buildings
and facilities in order to attract students

ond tolent while improving efficiency and
controling costs Our research indicotes that
81% of UK universities surveyed will carry

0out 0 Mojor CONSrUCiion profect wosih over
£5m within the next year Qur expertise in this
sector means we gre well placed to copitalise
on any mvestment by untversity estates

OELIVERING HIGH QUALITY AND VALUE
FOR THE METROPOLITAN POLICE

As part of the Metropoiian Police s strotegy
[0 improve the qualty and efficiency of
11s custodial estate geross London Wates
Construction has developed a number ot new
custody facilities in Croydon, for exaomple
we uilt a new fit-far purpose 40-cell custody
centre on on existing brownhield site in the
shortest possibie time for the best possible
value The challenge was to provide mare
foriess wathout compromising either design
or build quahty Roger Hardmg, Director of
Construction for the Metropolitan Police std
The Croydon Custody Centre s an excellent
example of what the public sector and
contractors can deliver with clear strategic
objectives and a willingness to mnovgte to
achieve against ime and cost pressures”
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Your Future, Your Choice

Wates, in parinership with Business in
the Community (B1TC) and a ronge of
businesses in Coventry took partin an
event called "Your Future Your Choice ot
the Ricoh Arena in November It prowided
interactive workshops and adwice on
tramntng ond employment opportunities
for 1 200 local young people and 1S part
of a programme developed by BITC to
insprre businesses and schoofs to work
together 1n supporting young people in
ochieving thewr potential

Wwates Annual Repert and Accounts 2012
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BUILDING ON DUR EXPERIENCE WITH
{CONIC AND LISTED BUILDINGS

Wates hos extensive expenence in hentage
refurbishment and we have continued to
strengihen our presence n this sector with the
successful completion of the refurbishment

of the east wing of Somerset House Kings
College— one of London's most iconic butldings
Additions and alterations carmad out in the last
220 years had to be stripped cut ond structurcl
repairs made to sofeguord the bulldmgs future
and to bring it up to modern standards

During the work we discovered the remaorns of
Saxon and Tudor foundations ond mstalled

o bespoke back-ht glass floor to exhibit the
excovouons We giso crented o perfect sione
1eplico of the oniginol cantievered staircose

to serve new rooms in the bulding s attic,
Somerset House s east wing 1s now home o the
College s School of Low ond @ new culturol hub,
the Inigo Rooms which opens the building up to
the public for the first ime in s tistory ond was
opened by HM Queen Elizabeth It as port of the
Diomond jubilee celehrotions

Lion Salt Works, Northwich

We're working on the E5 6m restoraotion
of the tustoric Lion Salt Works i
Northwich Cheshire which will open

os o living museum in 2014

ironmonger Row Baths, Isington

Owned by Ishngton Councd this iconsc
historic Grede Il isted building i the heart
of London s Old Street was one

of the most challenging projects that
Wotes Tonstruction has ever carmied out.
We successfuily preserved the heritege of
the bullding while signlficantty enhancing
1ts environmental specificotions
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Metropolitan Police Custody Suites

Wa gre using Building Informotion
Modelting (BIM} as part of our work on the
£56m development of new custody suites
for the Metropolitan Police It enables our
people and our supply chain partners 1o
get a clear overview of the project ond
soves time and money

PDSITIONING THE COMPANY
AS ATHOUGHT LEADER

Wates longstanding commitment to the
construciion scclor legether with our firmly
held values and innovotive ideas gives us
the privilege and responsibility of being an
influential vorce in the industry Consequently
in 2012 Wates Construction commissioned
an independent research project toidentify
the trends and challenges facing higher
education estates The survey reveals that
attracting students i3 the man driver betund
butlding projects at UX universities and this
will help to shape our future strategy for the
educotion sector In addition Wates Giving
sponsored areport No place to call home
The social impocts of housing undersupply
on younq people by the Institute of Public
Policy Research (IPPR) This demonstrates
how housing undersupply — in combination
with a number of other social, economic
and cultural forces —1s having a real and
substontial effect an the experiences

and future asprrations of young people

It provides a number of potential policy
respanses including the need 1o bulld mare
homes |t also states that new ideas (o create
pathways towards iomeownership for young
people are needed, as are reforms to the
private rented sector m which more and
mare young people find themselves for an
extended phase of therr lives We hope that
this seport will contrbute 1o the debate about
the housing cnsis and galvanise government
and other bodies to take actron

Wates Living Space in partnership with
the IPPR and Orbit Group clso co-hosted
adehbate on Housing the Nation atthe
Conservatwe Porty conference n October
2012 This fringe event wos intended 1o
put housing ot the top of the political
agenda highlighting its importance for
economic recavery and supporting Wotes
wider sirotegy to nfluence government
pohicy in this areq

Wates Giving hos also sponscred a new
intictive by the UK Green Building Council
thot will create an online platform -

called Pinpoint that will enable buikt
environment professionals to identify the
best resources tools and guidonce avalable
ltwill go live in 2013 and demonstrotes

Qur an-going commitment to sustaingble
burldmg proctices

WORKING WITH CUSTOMERS AND THE
SUPPLY CHAIN TOINCREASE EFRIGENCY

We recognise that our customers and supply
chan are fgcng difficult tmes whictiis why
we are working ever more closely with them
tor our mutual benefit To provide cusiomers
with increased efficiencies we have used
Bullding Information Modedling (BIM) ona
number of projects including custody suites
for the Metropolitan Police at Wood Green
police stauon and First Street g new cultural
bulding in Manchester city centre BIM
produces a virtuat prototype of o bulding
betore work begins it speeds up the design
process streamlnes construction, ensures
that we are pracunng the nght products

for the build and reduces nsk Over the
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next 2 years we plan to use BIM acrass the
organisation s ine with government targets
to use it on all public construction projects
over £5m by 2016

In 2012 we also introduced a new commercial
and precurement structure which will help
improve the competiiveness of the business
for the next 5 to 10 vears For the first ime we
have ¢entral procurement managers in place
1o ensure greater integration agrass the
businesses ond to strengthen our strategic
relotionstups with supply chain partners

NEEDSPACE? PROVIDING ENTREPRENELURS
WITH INSPIRATIONAL SPACE

Needspace? offers entrepreneurs ond small
businesses offordoble tiexbie, managed
workspacein pnme tocaitons Ouraim s

to create @ community of entreprenéurs
working to develop therr businesses alongside
others in a supportive and enterprising
environment This ethos together with our
flexible terms enables busmasses to take
space foras Little as 3 months at o tume and
megns that in 2012 Needspace? achieved
85% occupancy and 1ts highest ever turnaver
of £1 8m Tenants range from traditional
office based businesses to 1 yoqo siudio,
bespoke furmiture designer and an explorer
who plans to retrace Captamn Robert Scott s
1912 trek to the Antarctc Qur plan is {0 grow
the business by further increasing occupancy
levels and to expand into new sites as and
when suitable property becomes available

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Supporting young
entrepreneurs

Wates Giving 1s supporting projects
developed by students ot the Royal
College of Art’s entrepreneur unit
providing funding to develop o number
of mnovatve products including o
bicycle powered machine for recycling
copper cable in indin

CREATING OPPORTLNITIES FOR PEQPLE

Wates has a long-standing commitment

to supporting the communites in which

we work and 2012 wos no exception

As a notional partner of Business in the
Communuty s llagstup educaton programme
Business Class, Wates currently has 8
partnesships sponsored by Wates Giving
located in Leeds Manchester Liverpool
Coventry Leatherhead London Bristol

ond Southamptoen We supported 2 400
students through Business Class events in the
201172012 gcademic year The exam board
for Busness Closs scheol St Matthews in
Manchester said  The centre has an excellent
relationship with @ nationat construction
company which grovides comprehensive
suppart in specific conskeucnon skills ond
general employability skilis to learners”

We have also provided 389 days of work
experience fof young people through our
Work inspiratton programme ond more than
115 adults have taken part in our Building
Futures programme in 2012 alone, with

57% of them mowving into employment or
further learning Wates continues to support
The Prince s Trust s Getinto Construction
programme with Wates Giving funding
which helped 726 young people gain work
experience n 2012 Last year Paul Drechsler
also took over the position of Charr of the
Construction ond Business Services Group
which admimistess this programme

Changing Paths
stonemasonry project

Changing Paths a chantable trust setup

by Wates with Watas Gving awords
helps ex-offenders into emplgyment It
1S NOW running & stonemasonry tratning
project and those that have taken

part cre now getting commssions for
maintenance work on cathedrals and
hsted bulldings

We are alsg committed to supportng
those seeking o career In construction
and asseciated ndusines Wates Giving is
supporting a number of Masters students
at University College London who are
studying the built environment plonning
and architecture ond it 1s providing bursores
for students ot the University of Sussex in
low archutecture and engineerng 1t is also
sponsoring a senes of lectures on the use
of concrete in architecture ot universities
acrass the UK

TRADING WITH BUSINESSES
WITH A PURPOSE

We set o goal to work more with social
enterpnises ond have made good progress
with over £3 8m troded with social enterprises
since June 203 Currently we trade with

22 sociat enterprises on over 137 projects
and are explonng woys w which we con
ntegrate more nto our supply chain

Wates Giving has invested £75,000 10

o pilot brakerage systemn which will help

the construction mdustry identify social
enterprises In the commurities In which they
work and with whom they can do business

GIVING SOMETHING BACK

Wates employees ond our supply chain have
continued to give therr tme to support the
tocal communities inwhich they hve and work
Dunng Wetes annuol Community Day they
donated 8 700 hours to deliver 90 projects
across the UK Inacditton our Lend a Hand
volunteering scheme reached BBO hours of
volunteering by Waies employees eguoting
to o value of more than £43120
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Greenwich University Technical
College Partnership

Waotes, along with Transport for
London, 15 spansonng a new

University Technicol Coliege (UTC) —

a 500-ploce school for 14-19 year olds —
in Greenwich, London In addition to the
basic GLSE subjects of English, Moths,
Science and IT, the UTC will specialise

0 engmeenng construction, transport
and green technologtes It will focus on
develppmg the employment prospects
of young people by engog:ng them in
tugh gquality, practicol work and buswess
related learming

"WATES HAS BEEN AT THE
FOREFRONT OF HELPING DRIVE
THE UTC FORWARD AND THEIR
CONTRIBUTION HAS BEEN
INVALUABLE TO EVERYONE
INVOLVED IN THE PROJECT"

MIKE SHARP
Princippl The Royal Greenwich UTC
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Celebrating supply chain
performance

We recogrise thut we are only gs strong
as our supply chain So i recognition

of theirherd work and protessionalism,

we introduced our 15t ever National Supply
Chain Awerds which were judged egainst

6 key performance creas The strongest
overall performaonce acress the boord was
from Toureen Mongan which receved an
overall Supply Chan oword

Bth onnual Commumity Day

Wates Community Bay 15 hugely
important to the Group ond off our
people, This yeor 1,084 employees,
customers ond supply chain partrers
gave up their doy jobs to volunteer their
time and expertise to help the locat
communities in which they work Projects
this year focused on educotionat
octrvities os weil os woodlond clearonce
projects interior and extertor butlding
refurbishment, gordening ond working n
Bornordo’s stores nouonally

Wates Annuol Report and Accounts 2012
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Scaling Kikmanjoro

An mirepid team from Wates toak on one
of the toughest chaollenges — chmbing
Africa s mghest peak, Mount Kitmanjaro
Altitude sickness and enormous blisters
dedn ¢ put them off gnd they raised over
£60,000 for Wotes chanty partaer,
Bamardo s

CONTINUED FOCUS ON SUSTAINABILITY

Our Reshaping Tomorrow mitiative provides
a clear focus to ensure we have a pasitive
impact ¢ the envirgnment and thot we
support the communities i which we ive
and work AMong our many ochigvements
dunng 2012 we diverted 97% of waste from
londfill reduced our CO, emussions by 5%
and retained our Platinum Plus stowsin
Business in the Community s Corparste
Responstbility Index the only contractor

to recelve this occolade
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Responsible sourcing

Wates 15 committed to sourcing
responsibly We worked closely with
staff fram Great Portlond Estates
and from FSC accredited certification
body, BM Trada to gain project
cartfication on 2 schemes for Great
Porttand Estates — Wigmore Street

and Marcol House

“GREAT PORTLAND ESTATES PLC

ARE COMMITTED TO DEVELOPING
SUSTAINABLE BUILDINGS

OUR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
BRIEF AND FRAMEWORK GUIDES
INFORM EACH STAGE GF THE DESIGN
AND CONSTRUCTION PROCESS
RESPONSIBLE SOURCING OF
MATERIALS IS A KEY ELEMENT OF THIS
PROCESS, WE THEREFORE REQUIRE
THAT ALL MAJOR DEVEL.OPMENTS
ACHIEVE FSC PRGJECT CERTIFICATION
THE CO-0PERATION OF ALL MEMBERS
OF THE PROJECT TEAM IS ESSENTIAL
IN MEETING THIS REQUIREMENT AND
WE ARE BELIGHTED TO BE WORKING
WITH WATES GROUP ON ACHIEVING
FSC PROJECT CERTIFICATION AT

33 MARGARET STREET AND 95
WIGMORE STRLET”

MARTIN QUINN
Project Manager Great Portiond Estotes

Site Supervisor
Envtronmental Traming

The UK Contractors Group of which
Wates 15 a part s comsmtted to
improving the environmental knowledge
and skils within the industry We worked
n partnership with Costain and Skansko
and the UK's Sector Skills Councy!
CITB-Construction Skills to develop

the st nationolly cccredited
enwirgnmental traning progromme for
site supervisors and managers working
n the construction ndustry "It was a
good mtraduction and provided ¢lear
help on our legal requirements ~ says
one of the participanis, Tony Mitchell of
0 Brien Contractors

wates Annugl Report ond Actounts 2012
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FINANCIAL
REVIEW

GROUP
HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover
increased by
7% to £1 2bn*

Underlying
profit before
tax at £29 3Im™

Net nssets
increased by
9%to70 2m

Cash ot bank
of £1213m

CONSTRUCTION
HIGHLIGHTS

Underlying
profit before
tox £23.4m™

Turnover
increased by
3% to £11bn*

Order book
of £1 6bn

DEVELOPMENTS
HIGHLIGHTS

Profit before
tox increased by
154% to £9 2m

chdes shixe of joait ventures
ang ossocmte’s traver
Undertying profi belore 3 stoted
helore sestiuctunng costs ond
prof on sole of vestmenrys

£1.2bn

£29.3m™

GROUP TURNOVER 2012 UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2012
GROUP TURNOVER* GROUP PROFITBEFORE TAX
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GROUP TRADING PERFORMANCE 2012 and the year-end cosh at bonk was

The Group produced cnother sold
operating and financial performance n
2012 This underhnes the resiience of our
construction activities in what continues
ta be a challenging econarmic and trading
enviranment and further reflects the
strength of the Group’s overall portfolio

Group turnover, including the Group s share
of joinr ventures and 0ssociate, increased
by 7% 10 £] 2bn Headline pre-tox prohts
reduced to £257m (2011 £401m) with
underlying profit belore non-recurnng
restructunng ¢osts and sale of nvestments
down 11% ot £29 3Im (2011 £33 0m)

Duning 2012 the Group incurred restructunng
costs of E4 9m relotng marnty to redundancy
payments These costs were ncyrred to
secure the long term future of the Company
and resulted sn an overall headcount
reduction in 2012 of 283 creatng ennualzed
savings of over £18 5m The business will
CoNunRe 10 torget iImprovements to deliver
better value and increased etfhciency

Profitan sale of investments £1 3m (2011

£7 2m)} relates to the sale of ¢ PFiinvestment
ond further detaifs are provided in note 6 to
the fingncigl stotements

The balance sheet further strengthened
during the year with a 9% increase n net
assets, to £70 2m (2011 £64 3m} A strong
cash posttian was maintaned throughout

E121 3m (201 £132 Im) The Group continued !
selective nvestment 1n residentiatland and

davelopment and commercial property

increasing its copitolemployed to £76 bm

(2011 £738m}

The Group has in ploce a revolving

credit facifity of £25m afthough it has
remamed unutihised and the balonce sheet
remains sngeared

The foundatton of the tong term family
ownership of the Wates Group Is sustamed
hnancwi strength and stohibty The tangible
ungeared nature of our belance sheet
COontnues to give great comfort 10 gur
customers prospectve customers and
supply chain providing them the certainty
of covenant that they demand We go into
2013 with a substantigl order book £16bn
(2012 £2bn) andina strong and resilient
hinoncial pasition

CONSTRUCTION

The Groups construction gctmaty turnover

including shore of jeint vertures and

associate which includes Construction Living

Space and Intenors ond Retail incregsed

by 3% to £11bn Pre-1ox profits reduced to

E19 8m (2011 £38 Zm), wilh underlying profit

belore non-recurnng restructunng costs and

sale of nvestmentsdown 25% ot £23 4m

(2011 £311m), reflecting the challenging

market and gperoting conditions -
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DEVELOPMENTS

The Developments busiiess continued

its established strategy of creating value
through residential land management

In 2612 pre-wox proftincreased sigmilicontly
to £9 2m (2011 £3 6m) with year-end capital
employed of £61 2m {2011 £58 trm)

NEEDSPACE?

Needspace? provides flexible managed
warkspace across London and the South
Eost for small and medium sized businesses
Duning the year, revenue increased by 8% to
£18m (201 L1 7m}returning a pre-tox profit
of £0 4m (2011 £0 3m) At the yeor-end
capital employed in the business was £15 4m

CASH FLOW

The Group imshed the year with a cash at
bank balonce of £121 3m (2011 £132 Im)
Prohts after tax ond dividends paid in the year
were £4 Bmbut due 1o gne-oti paymenis

to the pension fund of £5 7m and an unwind
11 operating cash {including the iImpacton
deferred receipts on land sales of £14m)
there has been g net outflow in the year

This s partially offset by an equity injection of
E£5m from shareholders

PENSIONS

Fhe fnancial statements reflect the defined
beneht scheme dehiait colculated in
accordance with FRS17 (as amended) At the
end of 2012 the net defut was £332m (2011
£30 8m} The market value of the scheme s
ossets wos £162 Om {201 £149 Om) ond the
net present value of the labifities £205 Im
(201 £1901m) Dunng the year the Group
made special contributions aof £5 7m {2011
£15m) This hed no effect on the praht and
loss account for the year but reduced both
cash and the pension dehcit There wos an
actuarial 19ss 1 the year of £51m {2041

£8 8m) Pension chorges of £5 4m (2011

£4 8m) wore made to the profit and loss
account n accardance with FRSEY

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Movements in sharehotders funds were

£rn
Shareholders funds at 31 December 2011 64 3
Profit for the fingncial year 187
Pension movements (47)
Drvidends (139)
Currency tronslation difference 03
Called up share capital 50
Revaluation reserve 65

Shareholders funds at 31 December 2012 702

TAX

The tax charge for the year was £7 Om which
gave an elfective rate of 27 3% (201 24 4%)
This compares to the UK main corporation
tax rate of 24 5% The tox charge exceeds
the UK main corporation tox rate due to
discllowable costs in the Middte Eost and
amortisation of goodwill The Group's tax
ligbilities anse in and are met wholly in the UK

DIVIDEND

During the year dvidends totaling £13 9m
{2011 £19 9m) were paid All of this reloted to
Llhe final dvidend lor 2014

WATES GIVING

The Group contributed £1 i during the yeor
to Wates Giving the chontable programme
of the Wates Family Enterprise frust The
programme s prionty continues to be
Investment in locol projecis which benefit
communities tor the lang term

40—

HUW DAVIES
Chief Financiai Officer
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Governance '

RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
DEVELQP QNGDING
DEFINE IDENTIFY Sﬁiisfw’?{"“ ACTION PLAN REVIEW AND
BUSINESS ) 0PPORTUNITIES ) JUARNTIE TO MITIGATE OWNERSHIP
OBJECTIVE / ANDRISKS e RISK WITH OF RISK
ACCOUNTABLITY/  MITIGATION

RISK MANAGEMENT FUNDAMENTAL TO
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

Risk management 1s key to delivering project
success for our customers and drving
sustamakble growth for our stokeholders

Our customers require us {0 pravide
solutions ond we must manage a number of
nsks to do this safely on trme and on budget

Our customers are also looking for portners
who are financially soecure Woles has on
excellent trading positign due to [ts many
years of careful nsk manogement

The diogram above shows the risk
mangogement process within the Group
The Board ieads the discussions relating to
risk and prowvides direction This approach
15 cascaded down the Group thrgugh the
executive comnuitee fisk committee and
regional boords ta individual project teams

CGNGOING RISK MANAGEMENT

Wates involves custamers and partners nt
agreerng risk matiers and how these are
best mingated Although risk s managed
constantly on every one of our projects
we also have nsk management discussions
across the Group ot the following key
check-pomnts when

« Discussiag and agreeing the husiness
strategy

+ Tengenng icr new work

= Piariming lor projects

= Momitoring existing projects

» Reviewing business performance

The mon chioltenge for ony company is
1ts Culture in respect of sk manogement
At Wates, this essentiat part of our business

aperations 1 cleary led by the Board and
1svisible to all our people Management
of nsk 1s not sormething that 1s outsourced
to a speciahst team It1s embedded In our
processes and owned by everygne

SPECIFIC RISK MANAGEMENT

As expected 2012 was another challenging
year we describe betow some of the key
areds oifocus Infrostructure nvestment
n both the public end private sectors was
hmited during the year as a result of the
economic downturn Dur response was

Lo devole significont ime to improwing

oui competitiveness and to seekmgeven
mare efiective solutons for our customers
Loss-making contracts caused by either
poor tendering or peor project performance
continued to be o nsk. We are continuing
to invest n developing our commercial and
operational people and processes

Inselvency of both customers and supply
choin partrers hos been an increasing
concern for the construction industry

Steps taken in 2012 were robust which means
the impact on our customers has been low

In 2013 we expectto see more hnancicl
choltenges for our supply choin ond are
developing our assessment and monitoning
activities further

Angther risk relates to our reputgtion which
we manage constantly It s i this oreg that
we have focused ohigh leval of ottention
raising awareness of Its importance with our
people and traxningin the high prohle aspects
of competition [ow and the Bribery Act
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RISK

POTENTIAL IMPACT

MITIGATION

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Our clients moy cancel postpone or
reduce existing or future projects due to
the effects of gltobal economic conditions

Sigrubcont changes i client spending
or investment pions may adversely
affect our order hook and ultimately
turnover and proht

Focus on repedt busingss and strategic chents and market sectors
Broad exposure to constructien market sectors mitigates the risk of
changen any one market sector Exploration of new markets

TENDERING.

We may not be successtul ct winning
tenders for new work or tender errors/
decisions adversely atfect periormance

Not winning work or winming work at
an unpraftahle price, SO ndversely
affecting order book and margins

Signilcont artentiun s poid to the tendenng processes ang
the quality of the presentations to potential customers
Regulwr feedback s sought to examine potenticl improvements

Defined outhonty levels cwst for the aparovat of gl tenders
wnth ¢ll major and signihcant conlracts subjecied 1o Group
reviewond approval.

PROJECT DELIVERY

Projects may not be delivered to our high
standards of safety, on time on budget
and to the requured qualty

May gffect the profitokdity and
reputation of the Group and ability 10
secure repeat work

The nskis mingated by allocating the nght pecple cperating
controlied processes and ngoraus monthly projact reviews.

Safety ond Operatonal Excellence imttatives seek to continuously
improve processes ond conrols

TRADING PARTNERS

Heightened exposure to counteroarty nsk
I'e suppliers subcontroctors consultants
chents (oint venture partners and hnancial
INsttutrons

This risk mostly refates to the
creditworthiness of chents and stability of
our supply chan but could also include
detault not caused by insolvency

Faiture in counterparties coutd
result in non-collection of amounts
owed or disruption and deloys 10
contract progress

Rigosous stabrity checks are carned out for alt counterparties before
contracts are entered into Ongoing rewiews are carned out on
reqgulorbasis to mitgote hnancial or disruption exposure

Speaaised insurence {Sitbguord} is glso taken out m our
Construction business ta sndemnify us ond our chents aganst
subcontractor default

PEOPLE

Employees may not have the nght skills
to cope with a radica’ly changing and
demanding market

Witnout appropriately skited end
trained people our ablbity ta defver
successfutcontracts and our future
growth moy be offected

Our business 15 all cbout people thew expenence, their quality
and ther abildy Lo work in teams There s significont tocus ono.s
employee praposition including recruitment training challenge
reward ond being the employer of choice

FINANCE AND LIQUIDITY.

(ash and longer-term inancing may
reduce /f cashis not collected and costs
not controfled

Reduced growth and expansion
opporturities and ability to pay
suppliers on time

Balance sheet and cash management 18 elosely controlled by our
Finance team including daty reporting cash forecasting investment
analysis and scenone modeling High cash levels ore maintained
generally on short-term deposit

PENSION

Changes in longewvity mflation and
Invesiment assumpkions matenally
aftecting the pension fund

Additionat funding may be requred
und coud hwve o subistontgl efect on
our balgnce shegt

Steps have been taken over the past 10 years to lessen the
exposure Including the closure of the scheme to new entrants in
2002 and heneht curtadment m 2007

The performance of our pension scheme s regularly reviewed by the
Group and the Trustees of the pension scheme who oS opproprate
toke adwece from external consultants

REPUTATION-

Our good standing within the construction
industry could be aftected i business
conduct falls below our high standards, or
If we are not seen to comply with legal or
reguiatory reguirements

The difution of our brand name may
odversely offect profitabiizy growth
ondimpact across the industry gnd
COMMUN Ies we work in

We clearty set out our expectations far our emplovees for dealing
with all stokeholders

The Code of Conduct and conbinued training supports our employees
n delivenng to the highest stondards ot ethics and integnty

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chaarenan ond
Chief Executive

Paul joined Wates
Groupin 2004 as
Chief Executrve
and wos oppomnted
Chairman and Chief Executive in 2006
He was prevtously an Executive Director of
IC} Chairman of ICI Pension Trustees end o
member of the World Business Council for
Sustainoble Development He s the Senor
Non-Executive Director of Filtrona and
Chormaon of its Remuneration Commitiee
Paul 15 a board member of the C8t and
of Business in the Community where he
is Chawrman of the Education Leadership
Team Poubis also Choir of the Princes
Trust Construction and Business Services
teadership Group and o member of the
Trinity Cotlege Dublin Business Schoal
Advisary Board

HUW DAVIES

Chief Financicd
Officer and Company
Secretary

Huw was appointed

Chief Finaniciol Ofhcer

of the Wates Group
Board in 2005 He was previously Head of
Carporate Finance at Tayior Woodrow and
has held key posttions with KPMG Ernst
ond Young and the Government of Oman
Huw 15 o member of the Wates Developments
Executive Committee which he choired untl
mid-2012 ¢nd o director of Needspace?
the Wates Group mangged workspace
divisiont He1s Chairman of the BITC South
East Adwisory Board and is HRH The Prince
of Wales Ambassador for responsible
business w the South East He wos a Non-
Executive Director of WSP untit July 2012
and 1s a Trustee of the children s
communication chanty | Can

DAVID SMITH

Chiet Operating
Officer and Manoging
Director, Wates
Construction

Dave started his career

in construction as o
surveyor with Sir Robert McAlpine He joined
Wates in 1985, later leading the speciahist
refurbishment diviston m London In 1999
he became MD of Wates public sector
business and in 2005 he was appointed MD
of Wates Construction taking responsibility
for the Company s education, commercial
and public sector work. Dave wos appointed
tothe Wates Group Board in 2009 He s
the Company s representative for the UK
Contractors Group ond chairs the UKCG
Health and Safety Leodership Group

IAMES WATES
Deputy Chasrman

James joined Wates

Construction in

1983 and the Wates

Construction Board

as Marketing Cirector
N 1994 He was oppomied to the Wotes
Group Board in 1897 He s Chairman of the
Nomiinations Cormittee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee Outside
the Group lames 15 mvolved with severgl
Industry bodies He is Chairmon of CIT8-
ConstructionSkills Charrman of the UK
Contractors Group, a Vice Charman of the
CBI Construction Councd President of the
British Counnit for (Hftces o Commussioner for
the UK Commission for Employment and Skills
and Past President of the Chortered Institute
ol Bulding He s a Trustee of the Building
Research Establishment and the College of
Estate Management o Governar of Emanuel
Scheol a member of the Court of Governors
of the Uruverstty of Westminster Vice
Charrman of Queen Elizabeth s Foundanion
for the Disobled and a member of the London
Regional Counail of The Pnince s Trust He s
also a patron of the Wates Femily Enterprise
Trust In Jonuary 2012 james was awarded
the CBE for services to Construction and the
Chanitable sector

TIMOTHY WATES

Director

Tim started his career

at Cazenove and Co

prior to joimng

Wotes Group in 1990

He re-jomned the Wates

Group Board n 201,
having previously been a director of the
Group between 2006 and 2008, ondisa
member of the Audit Committee He Chairs
Wates Developments and the Wates Pensign
Fund and s Chairman of the Wates Family
Council- the Famdy Shareholder farum
He is Vice Chairman of the Coast to Copital
Local Enterprise Portnership and 0
Non-Executive Director of Tampopa and
Pedder Property Tim s a Trustee of vartous
Wotes Farmily chanties o Director of the
Clink Charity and a Schoo! Governor He has
an MBA from the Judge Business Schoal,
Uneversity of Cambnidge

ANDREW WATES
Director

Andy joined the Wates

Group in 19395 having

spent b years gaining

expenence of the

construction industry
wath Costain Construction and john Shreeves
and Partners Andy was appointed to the
Wates Group Board i May 2011 He s o Non-
Executive Director of MynadCEG Trustee of
the Wates Family Enterprise Trust, Norman
Wates Memaorial Trust and Construction
Youth Trust Formerly the Managing Duwectar
of Wates Interiors Andy was appointed the
Groupss Portfolio Development Director in
2012 tolead advoncements in the Groups
long term investment portfolio He holds an
MBA from Roffey Park Business Schoal
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CHARLES WATES
Director

Charlie s o chartered

surveyor with aver 10

years expenence in the

commercial praperty

sectar He s founder
ard jont Manaqging Director of Needspace?,
the Wates Group managed workspace
dimision Charhe joined the Wates Group
Beard in May 2011 and 1$ a member of the
Developments Executive Committee Heisa
member of the Bntish Counait for Othces and
a Governor of Dawndy school

JONATHAN WATES
Director

Hoving storted s
career at Grand
Metropolitan (now
Diogeo) Jonny joned
Wates Developments
1N 1995 ond later held the posimon of
Group Marketing Director untl 2006
He was appointed to the Wates Group Board
in 2008 He 1s a Non-Executive Director
of Gombado Limited and Chairman of
MyrigdCEG a provider oi on-site renewgble
energy solutions jonny 15 a Trustee of
the Wates Family Enterpnse Trust the
Williom Wates Memonal Trust o Governor
of Cranleigh School and has an MBA from
Cronfield University

DAVID BARQLAY
Independent Non-
Executive Director

Oovid wos oppointed
as @ Non-Executive
Birector of Woles
Group in December
2012 cnd1s o member of the Remunergtion
Committee David is Depuly Charrmon of
The !ohn Lewis Partnership ond chairs their
Remuneration Commuttee He also holds
Non-Executive positions at The British Library
and Wessex Water Services where he chairs
the Audit Committee Previously he held
the post of Senior Independent Director of
Gortmore Group and was a Non-Executive
Diwector of VT Group Dowids careerinthe
City included roles as Vice-Chairman of
Dresdner Klenwort the investment bank and
Heod of Ewropeon Corporate Finance at Nat
West Markets He previgusly spent 10 years
n the UK civil service incfuding 2 years as
private secretary to the then Pame Minister
Margaret Thatcher

PETER JOHNSON
Independent Non-
Executve Director

Peter was re-oppointed

to the Wates Group

Board in May 2011

having previously been
o Dwector of the Group between 2002-
2006 He s the fermer Charman of Rank
Group and the Senior Independent Diector
of Bunzl Peter 15 Vice President of the motor
ndustry chanty BEN and Vice President of
the Institute of the Motor Industry He hos
been involved with the automotive industry
for more than forty years with Rover Group,
the Marshatl Group of Companies and was
former Chairmaon of Inchcope

Business and Fimanciol Overview
Chorman and Chief Executive s Review
Case studies
Business and Finoncral Review

[p] sovemance
Accounts
QOther information

GRAEME MCRAULL
Independent Non-
Executive Director

Graeme was appainted
Non-Executive
Director of Wates
Group in 2009 and
has chaired the Audit Committee since
tuly 2011 He 15 also a member of the Wates
Remuneration ond Nominations Committees
He 1s currently Executive Chairman of Oeln
Capitof and Charrman of the ¢hanty,
Tronsard Graeme was previously Chief
Executive of Wincanton

FRIEDRICH
TERNOFSKY
Independent Non-
Executive Director

Fntz was appointed

Non-Executive

Director of Wates
Group In 2006 He 1s Charman of the
Wates Group Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Commiitee
Fritz 1s Charman of Albion ncome and Growth
VCT and o Director of Graysons Hospitality
Associotes (part of Graysons Restaurants}
Fritz was a former Senior Non-Executive
Director of Punch Toverns @ mam board
director of Compass Group and unatil 2011
Chairmaon of Kew Green Hotels

Wates Annugl Report and Accounts 2012
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1 PAUL DRECHSLER
Charman and Chief Executive

2 HUW DAVIES
Chiet Finenoiol Ofhcer and
Company Secretary

3 DAVID SMITH
Chief Operating Ofhcer and Managing
Directar, Wates Construction

4 HELEN BUNCH
Managing Director, Wates Intenors
and Retail

Helen jomned Wates n 2006 as Group
Strotegy Director with fifteen years of
mternationol sates, marketng ond business
monagement experience She warked ina
number of dificrent divisions ol IC] based
at varigus umes in Europe, Japan and
Amernica Helen became Managing Director
of Wates Retait in January 2011 end took
on responsibility for the lntenors business
i lune 2012 Helen s school governar ot
Westminster Academy

5 ANDY HOBART
Managing Director. Wates Living Space

Andy was previcusly Monaging Director

at Balfour Beatty Warkplace a £E60Qm
turnover support services busmness
employing over 8 500 people In this role
and hus previous role as Divisioncl Monaging
Dwrector of Rentokll he has extensive
expenence of dealng with Public Sector
Clients Andy has an excelfent track record
of strategic development orgenic ond
acquisitive growth operational excellence
ond chent satisioction Andy joined Wotes
1in December 2012

6 JOHN HOWELL
Group Production Director

John spent over 30 years with Bowvis Lend
Lease nising through the ranks to become
Opergtions Director and subsequentty MD

of Bovis Lend Lease (South) [In 2007 John
Jjoined Developers Cendy and Condy as Group
Construction Director where he oversow a
number of ndustry-leading developments
ncluding the prestigious One Hyde Park
scherne e has most recently beenwith
Gatiford Try to deliver its Athletes Vilage
project and 1s a member of the Construcing
Excellence Steering Group John (oined Wates
as Group Production Birector in Jonuary 2013

7 STUART TOGWELL
Group Commercial Director

Stuort jomed Wates G5 0 woInee surveyor

1 1986 and hos progressed through

line management to his appomtment in
September 2011 as Group Commercial
Director With over 25 years of expenence
Stuart 1s respansible for atl commercig)
actviues in the Group Inciuding surveying,
nsk management, legal supply chain
monagement and tendening and has
expertence of most procurement routes from
PF to long term partnenng contracts and
most construchion products ranging from
£2em to over £100m in size across the UK and
maore recently the Middle £ast Stuartisa
member of the RICS UK Project Management
Professional Group Board and also sits on the
{BI South East Council

Business and Financaal Overview
Choemon and Chief Executive s Review
Case studies
Business ond Financial Review

W Governonce
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8 JULIATYSON
Group HR Director

Juba joned Wates as Group HR Director in
2006 As a coreer HR professional she

has over 25 years’ expenience of working
with businesses to generate success through
peopte that creaes opportunittes

for personal growth She spent her early
career with the Boots Company Morcom
and TDG, later warking for Centrica, RBS and
Barclays Jula is the Executive Sponsor of the
Wates Skills ond Employability Progromme
and the Wates Community Investment
Progromme wmicluging Building Futures,
Volunteering and Apprenticeships She is

a leading campaigner for Inclusion within

the Construction sector, chainng the UKCG
Dwversity Group and 1s member of the CBI
Employment and Skills forum

9 PETER WHITTLE
Group Strategy ODirector

Peter has extensive UK and international
business strategy and operating experience
His previous roles inctude Board Director
and Head of Strategy at Tarmac Group
where his responsibilities included group
strotegy marketing communicotions,
technical and also business development
n the Mhddle Eost indio and Chino Peter
has held a variety of roles In engineering
services paints speciality chemicals ang
was a Owrector at the Met Office He s also
astrategic advisor to a UK Chantable Trust
Peter joned Wotes in Apridl 2011

IAN BURNETT

"I would hke to take this opportunity to thank lan Burnett Managing
Dwectar of Wates Lving Space until December 2012, for his contrnbution
to the development of Wates over the last 18 years™

Poul Drechsler Chairman and Cef Execttive

Wates Annuclt Report and Accounts 2012
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I Governonce I

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The cirectars present their annuol report end audited finanuiol statements for the yeor

ended 31 December 2012 This report should be read i conunction with the Charman and Chief
Executive s Review the Corparate Governance Report and the Dwractors Remuneration Repart

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group 1s one of the UK s Jeading construction contractors, with a substantial portiolo of
prvate ond public sector projects and s a residentiat lond developer The Group operotesin
the UK ond has a develaping business dvision m the Middle Eost A review of the Group s
business progress during the year and outiook for 2013 and beyond 15 included in the Business
Review on pages 26 to 41

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS £000s
Profit on ortsnory ocbivities before tuxation 25735
Taxation {7,024)
Profit for the financiol year igMm

The directors declored dividends m 2012 totolling £13 865 000 (201F £19 913 000)
These were pard on 16 April 2012 No further dividends have been declared in respect of the
financigh statements 1o 31 December 2012

HEALTH £ SAFETY

The Board remains commutted to the effective monagement ond montonng of bealth and sofety
and prowiding a saie working environment for ol employees and partners and keeping members
of the public with whom the Business comes into contact, free from harm

EMPLOYEES

The Grgup 1s an equal opportunities employer and promotes an environment free from
discriemination harassment and vichmisation where everyone receives equal treatment and
career development regordless of age gender notionaiity ethnic ongn. religion, mantal status,
sexual anentation or disabibity All decisions relating to employment proctices are objective,
free from btas and based solely upon work criteric and individual ment

The Group gives fult and foir consideration to opplications for employment made by disabled
persons ond encourages and assists the recruitment troning career development and
promotion of disabled people The Group endeavours to retain and where appropriote retron
those employees who become disobled dunng the course of their employment

The dwectors recognise the impartance of good refations ond communication with employees

os fundomental to achieving the Busimess strategy and fong term obgctives The Groups

Aanual Roadshow, which is open to all employees, 15 the forum by which the directors inform

and update stoff on the Business performance and outleok ior the futureé The Group olso holds
a conference twice a year for its top 50 business leaders te discuss business priorities and to
share business knowledge and proctice across the Group Inaddition regulor formal and informal
meetings are held ot Business Unit and regiongllevels und further communication 15 effected
through the use of in-house magazines electrome bulletins notice boards the Compony website
and Chairmon s regular Biog

The Group 1s commutted to improving the skills of employees through raining and development
and through nurtunng o culture n which employees feel valued for ther contnbution and
motivated to achieve therr full potential.

Statistics releting to the overage number of people employed by the Group duning the year can
be found in Note 4 to the Accounts
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Corporote reésponsiblity continues to remam
anintegral port of the Group s business and an
outhne together wih examples of the ways in
which our cotporate responsibility pnnciples
are applied con be found on pages 38 to 41

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is dedicated to the research and
development of nnovotive construction
methods and techniques focusing on areas
such as project delivery the development
ond integratton of new motenals and energy
effiniency solutions

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Group s share capital are set out
in Note 18 to the Accounts

ARTICLES OF ASSQCIATION

The Company s Articles of Assaciotton moy
be amended by a special resolution of the
Company s shareholders The current Articles
were adopted by shareholders on

13 November 2012

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company s Articles perimit the Board

1o consider gnd 1f deemed bt to outhonse
situations where a director has an interest that
conthicts, or may possibly conilict with the
interests of the Company The Board considers
that the procedures in place for reporting and
considering conflicts of inlerest are effective

DIRECTORS INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company s Articles of Association provide
for the indemmication of its directors and the
company secretary to the extent perrmitted by
the Companies Act 2006 and other opplicable
legislation out of the assets of the Company
11 the event that they incur certain expenses in
connection with the execution of therr duties
in addruon and n cormmon with mony other
companies the Company has msurance in
favour of its directors company secretary and
other officers, inrespect of certuin losses or
frobilities to which they moy be exposed due to
thewr office

Certain directors benehited from quolifying
pension scheme indemnity provisions duning
the hrancial yeor and benedt irom these at
the date of this report

DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors of
Wates Group as at 3) December 2012 ore
shown an pages 46 and 47 Nick MdcAndrew
reuved os o duecior of the Group witheffect
from 26 Apnl 2012

Biographicat details of the Wates Executive
teamn are shown on pages 48 and 49

Jon Burnett and Rod Stewart retired 05
members of the Executive Committee in 2012

POLICY FOR PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

The Group agrees payments with its supphers
and subcontractors on an indmidual contract
basis rather than folfowing a formal code

The Graup's palicy 1s to abide by these agreed
terms whienever it1s satishied that the suppliers
or subcontractors have provided the goods
or services it accordance with the contractual
terms and conditions The Group mamtamns
agood reputatron for consistent gnd imely
settlerment of suppher accounts

DONATIONS

Duning the year the Group made chontable
dongtions amounting to £1 090 000

The 8th annuot Wates Community Doy

wos held on 21 September 2012 Our entire
workforce and many of our supply chan
partners and customers volunteered in excess
of 8 700 man hours and donated matenals to
90 community projects around the country
Wates Giving, the chartable progromme of
The Wates Fomily Enterprise Trust, donaied
£25 000 to chantable argamsations that we
worked with on the day

Dunng the year a subscription of £50,000
was paid by Wates Group Serwices Limited to
the Conservative Party

GOING CONCERN

The Graup has considerable inancwal
resources together with G strong forward
order hook with a number of customers and
supphers across different geographic aregs
and market sectors As g consequence the
directors believe thet the Group 1s well ploced
Lo elfectively monoge the prancipaf bresiness
risks and uncertainties set out on poges 44
ond 45 The directors have o reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate
resaurces to continue in operational exstence

Business and Financiol Overview
Chorman and Chief Executive s Review
Caje studies
Business and Finenciot Review

[ D] Govemonce
Accounts
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for the foreseecble future Accordingly
the directors continue to adopt the going
cancern basis in prepanng the Group s
finonyal statements

DISCLOSURE OF iINFORMATION
TOAUDITORS

£ach of the persons who 15 a director ot the
date oi opprovol ot this report confirms that

1 sofar as the director is aware, there s no
relevont gudit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and

2 eachdirector has taken all the steps that
he/she ought to have taken as o dwrectorin
order to make himself /herself aware of any
relevant gudit information and to establish
that the Company s guditors are aware of
that information

This confirmation s given and should be

interpreted in accordance with the provisions

of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 2013 Annual Genergl Meeting ot

the Company will be held on Tuesday
30 Apnl 2013

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There were no post balance sheet events
reguiring disclosure

Approved by the Boord of Directors on
March 2013 ond signed on its behalf by

4B~

DH DAVIES
SECRETARY

wores Annud Report and Accounts 2012
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I Governance I

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Boord firmiy believes thot good business
ang sustained pesformance denves from good
corporate governonce and remaons firmly
committed to achieving the highest standards
1N the interest oi all stakeholders Governance
enobles business to be conducted responstbly
with openness and integnty, and in occordance
with all laws and regulations to which

business octivities are subject Governance

1$ focused across the entwre business ond not
Just @t Board level which enables sirctegic
objectives to be met value to be crected and
a sustanable business to be budt for the long
term The Board is clear that by dong the

rnght things In the night way, the Group can
protectits brand reputation and relationships
with shareholders customers employees
supply chain and the local communities in
whichits works

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company 15 fully compliant with the

UK Corporate Governance Code except
where as a family-owned company
appropnate alternative procedures are
inplace or elements of the Code are not
apphcable Throughout the year ended

31 December 2012 the Group complied

with alt pnnciples of the Code except that
the role of the Chawmen and Chief Executive
was exercised by the same individual,

Paul Drechsler The Wates family and Boord
consider that having @ joint Charman and
Chief Executive 1s apprapnate for the current
ownershiip structure ond thot robust controls
are mantained, which enable the Group to
beneht from his leadership expenence

ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN

As Chawman and Chief Executive Paut
Drechsler is utumately responsible for
appraiseng the Board of alf matters affecting
the Group and its performance He s also
responsibie for the effective aperotion and
chainng of the Board and ensunig thot alt
directors are able to play a full part n its
actviues The Chatrman ensures effective
commurication with shareholders and

that all Board members are aware of the

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE IN THE YEAR

views of shareholders As Chiet Executive

he 15 responsible for leading the Executve
Committee in running the Group’s business,
inciuding forrmutating strategy proposals for
Board approval ond ensunng that the agreed
strotegy is implemented in g timely and
effective monner

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of g Charman and Chief
txecutive Chiet Finoncial Uificer Chiel
Operating Glficer lour independent nort-
execubive directorsand five family directors
The number and calibre of independent
non-executive directors on the Board,
together with ther dverse backgrounds and
expertences ensure that the principles of the
UK Corparate Governance Code are met

The directors update their skills knowledge
and fomiliarity with the Company by ottending
appropriote external sermnars and trainng
courses meeting wih semor management
and visiting regrondl and divisionol opergting
offices Aninducuion programme s availoble
for all new directors which 1s talored

to speafic experience and knowledge The
Boord believes that the independent non-
executive directors are wholly ndependent

TYPE OF MEETING BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE | REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Number of Principal Meetings hetd 9 4 4
Number of Meetings attended by

Paul Drechsler Charman/CEQ 9 [4] [4)
James Wotes Beputy Charrman g - 4
Huw Davigs Chiet Financial Officer 9 [4] -
David Smith Chiet Operating Officer 9 - -
Oowid Barcloy Non-Executive Director " - 2*
Peter Johnson Non-Executive Director 9 - -
Nicholas MecAndrew Non-Executive Drector 3~ Pl 1+
Graeme McFaull Non-Executive Director g 4 3*
Friedrich Ternofsky Non-Executive Director g 3 4
Andrew Wates Drector 9 - -
Charles Wates Director 9 - -
Jonathan Wates Dwrector 9 - -
Timothy Wotes Director 9 4 -

jownied durtng 2082 **resigned dueing 2012

[ 1 Beackers meon attendorice by ¥Ivitnon Not 0% 0 memper
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i that they have no matenct business or
relationships with the Group that might
influence therr independence or judgement

The Board 1s responstble to shareholders for
the success of the Group There 15 o formal
schedule of matters reserved to the Board
including the determmation of the Groups
long term direction business objectives key
policies agnd strategy The Board also monitors
business pesformance and reviews nisk
controls The Board has delegoted authority
for all day-to-day management of the Group s
offoirs to the Executive Committee

The Boord had o programme of mne prncipol
Boord meetings i 2012 plus 2 additional
doys for the annual strategy conference
with the Executive Commitiee The Board s
provided with regular and tmely information
on the financial performance of the Group
together with reports on operationol matters
market candilions, sustaunabdity competitor
environment and other reievant 1ssues

The directars have equal voting nghts when
making decisions except the Chairman who
has a casting vote All directors have access
ta the advice and services of the Campany
Secretary and may, if they wish toke
professional advice ct the Group s expense

From time to lime matters anse which require
urgent opproval prior to the next scheduled
Board meeting and m such instances
approval of all directors 1s sought via a
telephone conference call Directors unable
to attend are invited to provide feedback to
the Chowman prior {0 the meetng

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARDIN 2012

During the year, the Board opproved

and endorsed

« the Annual Report and Accountis

« Group ond Business Unit budgets

« strategic plans and cross theme prionties
« capitatallocation and investment priorties
» lond and joint venture investments,

« thessue of new preferance shares ond

« conunued personal development of the
Executive Commuttee

They also consdered and reviewed

« the mpact of the prevesling economic
conditrons on the Group's shart ondiong
term strategies,

« munugement’s respense to challenging
market conditions

« competior analysis and benchmorking

« patentiol lunding models tor socialhousing
schemes

= the Group s Risk Register ong rmitigotion
controls

» corporate responsibility 1ssues,
= sureessien plans for senior monagement

They also recerved

« presenlalions from ench of the Busiess
Urits and Function Heads, providing
updates on operationgt commercwl
and tnanciof performance and nsk
management

« progress reports on the Middle East
business

« updates on progress agamst the stiaiegic
plan,

« progress reports on the Linbrook Services
ntegration plan,

« Group investrent perigrmance briehngs

« praposals far polential diversificgtion
OpHons within the built environment, ond

= business coses for all projects over £25m
including nsk prafle

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Group is an equal opportunities
employer and promotes of environment
free from discrimingtion The Group’s policy
on diversthcation extends Lo the Boord and
appomtments are objective free from bios
ond based solely upon relevant expenence
knowledge and indwiduol ment

COMMITTEES AND THEIR ACTIVITIES
DURING THE YEAR

The Boord delegates certamn governance
responsibiities to Board Committees ond
these ore detaled below

Business and Financial Qverview
Chorman and Chief Executive s Review
Case studies
Business and Fmancick Review
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Comimittee constantly monitors
interrogates ond challenges management on
its isk miligotion inanciol periormance and
the effectiveness ol its internal controls

The Commuttee looks to the internal and I
external auditors to ensure that their
activities remain focused i the right areas
which enables the Commiitee to act in
accordance with its terms of reference and
that management respond to the guditors
key findings in o mely manner

The Audit Committee comprises three
non-executive directors and is chaired by
Graeme McFaull o chartered management
aceountant The Board s satishied that the
recent ond relevont inenoal expenence

of the Audit Committee Charrmon and its
members enables the Committee to fully
discharge its duties in accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code Membership
of the Comrmttee dunng ihe year compnsed
Graeme McFaull as Chairman Tim Wates

and Fetz Ternolsky who succeeded Nick
MacAndrew in April 2012 when he retired from
the Board

The Committee met four tunes in 2012

and the Committee Choirman reporied its
conclusions to the Board after every meeting
The PricewaterhouseCoopers external

audit partrer attended all four meetings
during the year as did the Charrman and
Chuet Executve, the Ctuel Financial Officer
the Head of Internal Audit and the Group
Commercial Director, all at the nvitaticn

of the Committee’s Charmaon At each
meeting the Committee considered whether
the withdrowal of mgnegement from the
meeting was required, in order that it might
freely discuss any items with the internal and
the external auditors without the executive
management’s presence Twice a year the
external guditor withdraws from the meeting
Inorder thet the Committee may freely
discuss its performance with mancgement
Minutes of the Audit Committee are
arcuioted to all members of the Committee
and Boord

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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The Committes has clearly defined terms
of refarence which are reviewed annually
The terms of reference outline the
Comrmutiee s objectives and responsibiiities
reloting (o finoncicl reporting nterng)
controls, nsk management ond the
application of appropnate accounting
standards ond procedures Speoific
responsibiities include reviewing and
recommending tor approval the annual
financtgl stctements, reviewing the

Group s accounting pokctes reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls internal
audit and risk rnonagement processes
ond reviewing the scope ond results of the
external audit

The Lommittee ossessed the efiectiveness
of the extarnal auditor fallowing completion
of the 2011 qudit plan The evalugtion took
the form of g questionnarre tO a Cross
sectian of Wates stalf nvolved in the

audit process including members of the
inonuid Lomamerciol, 1T and internal guchit
functions and members of the executive
committee The calibre of the external
auditor ther governance independence and
professionalsm received good feedback
Areas of weakness that were addressed
durning the 2012 oudit included improved
commusication arcund the collation of
informotion and documentation

The Committee also has the responsibility
for overseeing the Internal Audit function
including approval of the annuat nsk-

bosed audit plan end monitoring the work
recommendontens ond effeciiveness ot

the function The Head of Internal Audit
meets with the Chawrman of the Audit
Committee twice a year withgut the executive
management’s presence

The Commitiee monitors the ndependence
and objectvity of the external oudrtor, by
agreeing the level of ther remuneration and
the extent of ther non-audit services

Apart from its usual duties described above
during 2012 the Committee

« trocked management’s response o
key indings in the external guditor's
manogement fetter,

discussed the effect of the economic
downturn on the Group and the major risks
anising, Including counterparty nsk

considered the output from the Group-
wide process used to identify evoluate and
mingate nsks ncluding review of specific
Business Unit Risk Registers

receved O progress report on
Improvements in opergtional processes
reviewed prionty areos where improvements
to controls and ther operation could legd
to an improved nternal gudit opimien,

receved quarterly reports on contract
roviews ana financiol movementsin the
period

reviewed Lhe Group s Bribery Act traineng
and development progromme

roviewed Lhe Group s whisticbtowing policy
and receved reports on octivity and
actions arnising, and

reviewed matengl changes to the Group's
delegoted quthonty listiings including
incredses in outhonty levels commensurate
with contract nisks

-

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remunerouon Commitiee s pnmary
abjective is 0 set remuneration pockages
at a level that wilt enhance the Groups
resources by attracting retaining and
motivating quality senior management who
can delver the Group’s strotegic ambisions
The Committec firmly believes that the
best people on the nght rermuneration

with an emphasis an performaonce related
pay engbles the Grqup to face the chotlenges
of ecenomic and market uncertoimty and
to defiver long term sustainable value tor
all stakeholders

The Remnuneraton Commitiee comprises
four nan-executive directors and 1s chared
by Fntz Ternofsky Members include fames
Wates and Graeme McFaull who succeeded
Nick MacAndrew when he retired from the

Board in April 2012 Dowid Barclay joined

the Committee in November 2012 The
Committee met four imes in 2012 and the
Chairman ond Chief Executive angd the Human
Resources Direcior otiended the meetings at
the mnwvitatign of the Chairman

The Lommittee has dehned terms of
reference which cre reviewed annually

The Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board concerning
the remuneration sirategy recruiiment
fromework ond long term incentive plons for
senior executives i doing so, the Committee
takes the advice of ndependent external
consuitants New Bridge Street

Minutes of the Remuneration Committee
e cwculoted to ol Committee and Boord
members but may be subject to redaction,
with the agreement of the Committee where
this 1s considered necessary to exclude
matters relgbing (o specific directors

Dunng 2012 the Committee

« reviewed gnd recammended critenig for
bonus and LTIP payments

= approved cmployee parliopalion of the
LTIP plan including transition gnd retention
155ues

= undertook analysis of earmngs progression
0 the Business ond industry,

« ronsidered market trends angd
benchmarking dato for purposes of salary
recommendations,

o reviewed guidelngs an executive
remuneration andthe Group s response

« considered the effectiveness and
independence ofits advisors

= reviewed ond recommended changes Lo
employee henghts,

« reviewed Its own effectiveness ond

= spuishied itsell that the Group s
rernunergtion policy did not create any
undue pressures or nsks
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

lames Wates chairs the Nommatons
Commutiee comprising the independent
non-executive directors Peter Johnson
and Graeme McFaull The Committees role
Is to consider the future composition and
structure of the Board and when necessary
to identify and evaluate candidates for
future gppointments In doing so, the
Commuttee tokes the advice of independent
external recruitment consultants

The Committee s objective 1s to ensure that
the Boerd remains bolunced ond cifeciive
that succession plans are In place and thot
its structure, composition and skill set remain
ahgned to the Group's swrategic objectives

The Commmuttee meets gt leost twice a year
and as required

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee, chaired by the
Chief Executive, consists of indmvduals
responsible for the strategic Business Units
ond key functions 1t meets formally twice o
month and focuses on safety, performance,
people and strategy Responsituity and
authority are set by the Board and delegated
by the Chief Executive to indmviduol members
of the Executive Committee They In tuen are
accountable to hwm far the perfgrmance of
thewr Business Units and submit medium to
long term strotegic plans onnual budgets
and quorterly forecasts for approval

Details of the achievements of the Executive
Commuttee n 2012 are highlighted in the
Chorrman and Chief Executive s Review and
Business Review at the front of this report.

Wates Developments and Needspace?

are Business Units within the Groug that
have different reporting and governance
requirements Developments reports to the
Board under the chairmanship oi Tim Wates,
while Needspace? reports directly to the
executive committee

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operotes a Risk Commtiee 10
ensure that mherent or emerging nsks n the
Business ure tmely idenniied and menoged
ot an appropriate level The Committea
reviews the orgonisation s response to
specihic preas of nsk and opproves stondords
ond processes where control weaknesses are
considered to exist

The Risk Committee s chared by the Chief
Executive gnd compnses members of the
Executive Committee together with sentor
Business Unit and Function leaders The Boord
ore sobshed thot the camposition of the
Committee and its terms of reference, which
are reviewed annually strengthens the Group's
approach to nsk manogement and mitgation

The Committee meets four umes a yeaor, the
timings of which are set to report into the
Executive Committee ond Board Minutes ofthe
meeting are circulated to all members of the
Commuttee Executive Committee and Board.

Dunng 2012, the Risk Commuttee

« reviewed the Group and Business Unit
Risk Registers and interrogated the nsks
wentihed

satisfted itselt that mittganng actions
were i place for specific nsks withuaeach
register

reviewed the Group Commercial Report at
cvery meeting and focused on nsks speciiic
1o ndwidual projects

considered the Group’s appelite for ask gnd
the protection of its reputation

regulory reviewed counterpusty nsk uad
associated risks

trocked monagement's response 1okey
findings in Lhe uuditor s monogement letter
and conirol weaknessesidentned bythe
internal assurgnce certification

reviewed the Grougs Bribery Act traning
and development programme
considerad the Groups restience to

froud ond satished isell thot appropaote
prevention ond detection methods were n
ploce and eflechve,

+ updaied the Group s process for colloting
exsting and potential conflicts of interests

*

Business ord Fimonoiot Overnew
Chairmant and Chief Executive s Review
Cose studies
Business and Finoncicl Review

[} ] covernance
Accounts
Other information

= gpproved matenal changes © the Groups
delegated authanty hstings, including
ncreases in guthonty levels commensurate
with contract nsks,

« ensured that sdequate insurence policias
were In place to protect the Group s long
term s

» evoluated the Group s whistleblowng
arrangements and

« reviewed Lhe Committees compos:tion
and governance

2013 ACTION PLAN

Focus of the Group Risk Commuittee s future
geian planwill nclude nsks assecated with

» counterparly falure

» foduie of o mojor controctor

» respurce capabiity

+ Coshmonogernent

« project selection ang dehvery,

= contracl terens and conditons ond

« infubitors that prevent early :dentfication
and interventian of 1ssues

The Group s operationgl nisks and thetr
mitigotion are outhned on pages 44 ond 45

COMMUNICATE WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Wates Group 15 100% ownad by

the Wates family 4th generation tamily
members are actively mvelved in the
business The Boord continues to engage
ond interact with the Family Enterprise
Strotegy seeking to align the Groups
strategic objectives with the family’s long
term aspirations for sustainability and growth
ond to explore diversiication options ond
alternative nvestment opportunities i the
built environment

The Board confirm thot the 2012 Aqnuo!
Report and Accounts token s o whole

are farr balanced and understandable

and provide the information necessary

for shareholders 1o assess the company’s
performance business modei ond strategy

wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

FINANCIAL REPORTING

A statement of the responsibiities of
the directors inrelation to the fingncial
statements follows this report

The Group s business actvities, together
with the fuctors likely to affect its future
development, performance and posItion
are set out in the Business Review on
pages 26 to 41 The hnanciol position of
the Growp includmg its cash flow hgquidity
position and the management of principal
risks and uncertointies, are described on
pages 42 to 45

The Group has considergble fingncal
resources together with o strong forward
order book, with a number of customers and
suppliers ocross difierent gepgrophic oreas
ond morket sectors As g consequence the

directors beheve thot the Group s well ploced

to manage 1ts business risks successfully
despite the continued uncertainty of the
economic outiook

After mgking enqumes the directors have o
reasonable expectation that the Company
ond the Group hove adequote resouices

to continue 1n operational existence for

the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Annual Report and Accounts

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board takes ultimate responsibility for
the Group s systems of risk management
and internal control and for reviewing that
effectiveness The Group s pancipal risks and
uncertainties and how they are mitigoted are
summaonsed on pages 44 and 45

The Board assessed the effectiveness of
the n1sk management process and internol
controls during 2012 and to the date of
this report Such assessment was based on
reports mode to the Board Audit and Risk
Commuttees including

* 0 Group-wide certibcotion through a

letter of ossurence process thai effectve
internal controls had been maintamned

ar whergany significant noa-comphance
or breakdown had occurred the status of
corrective action

the results of internal gudit s reviews and
annuel internal gudit opmion

quarterly reporting of Key Control Mornitors
by each Busmess Unit

= 0 paper prepared by management on its
analysis of s mternal control systems, ond
reports from the axternal auditors on

internal control issues ansing during the
course of the audit

The Group s systems and controls are
designed to manage rather than eliminate
the nsk of failure {0 achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurence ogainst moterial
misstatement or loss

The key features of the Group s system of
internal controls are

« on established monagement structure
opeiating throughout the Group with
cleorly defined levels of responsibiity and
delegation of authenties,

operaung guidelnes with outhonsation
himits set ot opgropriote levels n both
Business Units and Group functions,

0 comprehensive budgeting and
forecasting system which 15 regularly
reviewed gnd updated

9 fommal qua terly review of each Business
Urits yeor-end forecost business
performance nsk and internal control
matters as carried out by the directors of
eqgch Business Unit with the Chief Executive
and Chuef Finanaat Othcer in attendonce

monthly management reporting including
regular comparison of actual results
ogainst lotest forecasts

estabhshed stondards govermng

the Group’s client and contract

selection processes tendenng and
settlement processes ond contract risk
managemant process

« estabbshed stundurds governing the
Group s investment int land, property
and other significant assets, ncluding
acquesitrons and disposals These
include detared oppraisals oppropriate
authonsation levels and Board
approval depending on value or
perceived exposures,

« approvol of investment decisions

« reguiar monitonng, review gnd reporiing
of health safety ond environmental
matters and

= Jnternal Audit funchon reviews of risks
and controls

The Boord recerved regular reports from all
apercung units to menitor thew performance
and the Audit Committee received regular
reports from the Internal Audit function

All directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

POLICY
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The objective of the remuneration policy 1s to provide remuneration packages which dlow the business 10 ottract retomn and motivate the
gualty of senior managemant needed to deliver the Group s strategic aspirgtions and create sustainable shareholder value The Remuneration
Committee beheves that shasehofders interests are best served by remuneration packoges having a large emphasis on performonce -reloted
pay !t s therefore the aim of the Remuneration Committee to encourage and reward supenor performance by executives

The Committee s palicy Is to set the main elements of the remuneratton package at the {ollowing quartifes In comparnson to the Group's

Comparator Group

Base Salary Annua! bonus potential @ target Pension Benefits i kind Long term Incentwes
Medion Median Median Markei practice Upper quartile
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ELEMENTS OF DIRECTORS' The scheme applies to o seniar monogement
The membership and responsibility of the REMUNERATION group of 37 partcipants

Commuttee are outhned in the Corporate

Governance Repart BASE SALARY Performance targets are set onnually for

Committee members have no personal
finonciolinterest oiher than as shoreholders
inmatters to be decided no potentigl
confhcts of mterest onsing from cross
directerships ond no day - to-day involvement
In runnming the business

Formal written terms of reference are in
place a copy of which s available from the
Company Secretary

BENCHMARKING

The Remuneration Committee take
independent adviCe On executive
compensatron and associated scheme
design The Group s remuneration ts annually
benchmarked against companies of a simiar
size and complexity and other compantes in
the same ndustry The Committee s current
advisors New Bridge Street were appointed
in July 2008 ond the Commuttee are sotished
that their advice remains objective and
independent

In determining executive directors’ and semior
executives remunergtion for the year the
Committee consulted with the Charman and
Chief Executive Paul Drechsler and Group
Human Resources Director Julla Tyson
although no executive played ony part in
discussions obout ther own remunerouen

Salanes for Executive Commuttee members
take account of external market data the
indreiduats responsibiities, experience and
personal performance Salgries are reviewed
onnually in line with the stated policy ct
achieving median positioning with the stated
comparator group Base salornes exclude
annual bonus

ANNUAL BONUS

Abonus I1s paid to all Executive Committee
directors at o percentoge of annualised
bose salagry Amaumum bonus of 150%

of the on target bonus level can be ochieved
i the Group s pre-tox profit attains pre-set
torgets each year These targets are

agreed by the Commsttee The annualbonus
15 not pensionable

LONG TERMINCENTIVE PLAN

The Group s L1P 15 payable m cash alter
o specihe perfermonce periad, generally
3years ondis dependent on the
ochevement of performance conditions
over that penod which ore set at the
beginming of eoch three year term

Payment s made with reference to an
indmidual s satary and annual bonus
pereens cge whrch generales differcntiol
levels of payment for different individuals
based on their contnibution to the business
and comparative market posittoning

euch three yecr pfon ggainst o baseline profit
figure at three different performance levels
threshold target and stretch and by taking
sector gutlook into consideration

There are further Charmon speciic
LTIP schemes in respect of performance
relating to the provision of services to
the shareholders in terms of family
sirategy generatongl fransition and
ndmidual development

BENEFITS IN KIND

In ine with market practice the Group s policy
Is to provide the standord penefits in kind
appropngte for executive directors such as
prvate health insurance ond Ife assurance

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group operates both o Dehned
Beneht scheme which has been closed

to new members smce 2000 and @
Defined Contribution pension plan
Executive directors erther participate in
the Wotes Pension Fund or they receive
acontnbution of up to 25% of basic salory
towards a money purchase scheme or

by taking the cash alternative an
orrangement of their own choosing

Wotes Annua! Report and Accounts 2012
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

SERVICE CONTRACTS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has service agreements with its executive directors which have a notrce period of one year The Groups policy on termination i1s
that the Group does not make payments beyond its contractual obhgations and executive directors ora expected tomitigate thew loss

Executive Dirrector Company Notice Penod Contract Date Unexpired term of contract _ Potental termingtion payment
Paul Drechsler 12 manths b September 2004 rolling contract 12 months salary

David Huw Dawies 12 months | February 2005 rolhng contract 12 months satary

David Smith 12 months 1 July 200} rolling contract 12 months salary

EXTERNAL DIRECTORSHIPS

With the approval of the Board and shareholders n the case of the Chairman executive directors are permitted to hold externol appointments
Duning the year Paut Drechsler was a non-executve diwector of Filtrona ple and Huw Davies was @ non-executive directar of WSP plc
Oave Smuth holds no extemal appontments

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the independent non-executive directors is determined by the Beoard and reflects the anticipated tme commrtment to
fulhl their duties and 15 based on annual salary dota of non-executive directors fees

Independent non-executive diectors do not have serce controcts os thew terms of engogement ore reguiated by letter of oppointment
They are appainted for an inrtio hred term of three years and gre oble to resubmit themselves for re-election after each three yeaor period
They are required to retire ot age 65 The dates of re-election where applicable of independent non-executive directors are

Non-executive direcior Contract date Re-election dote
David Barcloy | October 2012 | October 2015
Peter lohnson** 4 May 2011 4 Moy 2014
Graeme McFaull 1 September 2009 | September 2015
Friedrich Ternofsky™ 1)une 2006 1June 2015

* Shareholders have approved the re-election of Peter Johnson and Fritz Ternoisky teyond age 65
** Pater Johnson hod o break i sefvice between 25 Apid 2006 ond 4 May 201
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

The diectors ore responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the hnanciol statements
n accordance with apphcable low ond regulgtions

Company law requires the directors to prepare finoncial statements for each finorciol

year Under thot luw the directors hove prepared the Group and parent company hinancral
statements in gccordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdem Accounting Standards and epplicable low) Under company iow the
directors must not opprove the hnoncigl statements unless they ore satisfied that they give
a true and fair wew of the state of afiars of the Group ond the Company and of the profit or
loss oi the Group for that pened In preparing these inonciod statements the directors

are required to

*

select suitable arcounting pohcies and then apply them consistentty

» make udgemenlts oad accounling estimates Lthat are reasoneble ond prudent,

= stote whether gpolcable UK Accounting Standurds have been followed subject to ony
moteriol depaortu s disciosed and explaned in (he hnanceol stolemenls

« prepare the Tingnciul stutements on the gang concern basis unless 1115 Inuppropriote 1o

presume that the company will continue in business

The directors areresponsible foi keoping edequote occounting records that are sufficent to
show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonoble accuracy ot ony
tume the knoncial pesition of the Company and the Group and cnable 1em ta ensure that
the fingnciol storements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the ossets of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and ntegnty of the Company § webste
Leqistalion i the United Kingdom governing the prepargiion and disseminglian of inoncial
statements may differ from legislation in other jursdichons

Wates Annuol Report ond Accounts 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WATES GROUP LIMITED

We have aucited the Group ond gorent company inanciol statements {the  inancial statements ) of Wates Group Limited for Lhe vear ended
31 December 2012 which compnise the Consohidated Profit and Loss Account the Consohdoted Balance Sheet the Consolidated Stoiement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses the Reconcilintion of Movements n Group Sharehoiders Funds, the Compuany Balance Sheet, the
Cansohdated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The financic! reporling fromework Lhat hos been onplied in Lherr preparation i
applicable law ond United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responstbilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 59 the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the imondal statements ond for beiny salisiied that they give g tue and for view Our responsiiity 15 to cudit and cxaress an opsmon on the
haanciol slalements in accordance with applicable low ead International Standards en Audiung (UK end Irclond) Thase standards require us 1o
comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standords for Auditors

This report including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body i accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 ond for no other purpose We do rot, In giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report 1 shown or nto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly egreed by cur pnor consent in writing

Scope of the gudit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtoimng evidence about the amounts gnd disctosures In the inoncial statements sufhcient to give rensonable ossurance
thut the hnonciol stotements are free from matenal misstutenent, whether coused by fruud or error This ncludes on assessment of whether
the occounting pehcies are appropriate to the Group s and parent company s Circumstances and hove been consistently appled and
ndequotely disclosed the reasonnbleness of signihcant accounting estimates mede by the directars and the overall presentanion of the
finoncral statemeants In oddition we read all the financiel and non-hnancial information in the annuai repert :o dentify motenal nconsistencies
wittt the gudited inanual stutements 1f we became awore of eny oppurent matenal misstatemen's or inceonsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Opinton on financial stotements

in our opimon the inancial sigtements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s oad the parent company s affars as at 31 Oecember 2012 and of the Group s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended

= have been properly prepored 0 accorgance with Umiled Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting Practice and

« have heen prepaced in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinton on ather matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opivion the informonicn given in the Directars Report for the hnancial year for which the incncial stetements are prepored is consistent
with the financicl statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the fallowing matters where the Comparies Act 2006 requires us ta report to you if i our opinton

« adequate accounting records kave not been kept by the parent ¢ ompoay or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not wisited by us of

« the porent company finarctot skotements ore nat in agreement with the accounting records and returns or

s cortain disclosures of directors romuncration specied by law are ot mode or

« we hove not receved all the inigrmation and explanalions we require far our audin

R

Jonathan Hook (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Lendon

12 March 2013
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[D] Accoums
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT Other nfarmation
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
2012 2on
Notes £000s £000s
Turnover
Group and share of joint ventures and associate 1,193,568 1117 (31
Less share of turnover of jomt ventures and associate {96,577) (8312}
Group turnover continuing operations 2 1,096,991 1033929
Cost of sales {1,001,922) {924 662)
Gross profit 85,068 109 267
Administrative expenses {including restructunng costs) (78.241) (80300)
Group operating profit
Continuing operations 3 16,828 28967
Operating proht from nterests in joint ventures and associole 1 9,046 35699
Total operating profit — Group and share of joint ventures and associate
Before restructunng costs 30,778 32 6a6
Restructuring costs (4,904) -
Total operating profit — Group and shore of joint ventures ond associate 25874 32666
Profit on sale of nvestrnents B 1302 7169
Behiol on revaluation of inveslrment properlies (220) (40)
Profit on ordinary actimities betore interest and taxation 26,956 39795
Net interest recewvable 7 2,672 3532
Net nterest payable — jont ventures (1,763} {1580}
Net other inance charges 7 (2.130) (1,603)
Profit on ordinary activities befare taxotion
Befare rastructuning costs ond profit on sole of investments 29,337 32,975
Restructuring costs (4,904) -
Profit on sale of nvestments 1.302 7169
Profit on ordinary octivities before taxation 2 25,7135 40144
Taxation 8 (7.024} {9,794)
Proht for the financial year 19 18,71 30 350

The above results have been derved from continuing operations
There 1 nd matenal difference between the reported results and the results calculated on on unmodihed tustancal cost basis
A stotement of movements in reserves 15 set out innote 19
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes £000s £000s
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill 9 26,232 27 842
Tangible fixed ussets 10 19 260 19705
Investments in jaint ventures
Share1n gross assets [l 19,930 84,293
Share in gross habilities 11 N,272) {79 84%5)
Loans provided Lo joint ventures 1] 37,920 46,773
Total nvestments i joint ventures 1] 46,578 51221
Other investments 11 2.679 2,631
94 749 i1 339
Current assets
Stocks 12 9,726 15035
Debtars
Amounts fating due within one year 13 182,965 167,197
Amounts faling due ofter more than one year 13 15.174 1.010
198,139 178 207
Losh ot bank ondn hand 121 254 132 195
329,119 325337
Creditors amounts falling due wathin one year 14 {301 482) (312,734)
Net current assets 27,637 12 603
Total assets less current liabilities 122,386 n40ae
Creditors omounts falling due after more than one yeor 15 (13,497) (14,241}
Provisions for habihties 16 {5.470) {4 548)
Net assets excluding pensian liability 103,419 95113
Net pension habihty 24 {33,198) (30,815}
Net assets including pension kability 2 70,221 64 298
Capital and reserves
Colled up shore capital 18 14,777 9777
Share premum account 19 9586 956
Capitol redemption resesve 19 17,447 17 447
Revaluation reserve 19 1,770 1220
Profit and loss account 19 35,27 34888
Shareholders’ funds 70.221 64 298

The notes on pages 66 to 86 form part of these accounts

Approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013 and signed on its behalf by

@} Pyhslir

P. ). Drechsler 0 H Davies
Chairman and Chief Executive Cheet Frnanciol Officer

4
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2012 201
Notes £000s E£000s
Profit/(loss) for the hnancial year
Group 12,677 28,911
Joint ventures 6,068 1439
Associate (34) -
18,711 30350
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties 19 550 476
Currency translatian difference on foreign currency net mveasiment 19 255 (88)
Actuanialloss recognised in the pension scheme 19 {5.073) {(8834)
Deferred taxatton credit attributable to actuanal loss 19 345 1,571
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 14,788 23475
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
IN GROUP SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
2002 20n
Notes £000s £000s
Pront for the hnancial year 18,7 30350
Oividends paid (13,865} (19913)
Other recogrused gains and losses relating to the year (net) 19 {3.923) (6 875)
New preference sharas ssued 18 5,400 -
Net increase in shareholders funds 5923 3562
Opering shareholders funds 64,298 60736
Clostng shareholders’ funds 70,221 64298
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 201
Notes £000s E£000s
Fixed assets
Investments il 58,412 58 077
Current assets
Debtors 13 24,567 20208
Caosh at bank and in hand 721 314
25,288 20522
Creditors amounts falling due within gne year 14 (32,742} {41138}
Net current hlabihities {7,454) {20 616)
Net ossets 50,958 37 461
Capital ¢nd reserves
Cofled up share copitai 18 14,777 9777
Share premium account 19 956 956
Caputal redemption reserve 19 17,447 17 447
Peaft and Inss account 19 12,7178 9,281
Sharehciders’ funds 50,958 37 461

The notes on pages 66 to 86 form part of these accounts

Approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013 ond signed on 1ts behalf by

@'f . %{e -’—Lay{_;z»

P.J Drechsler D H. Davies
Chaumen and Chief Execuytive Ctuet Financaat Olicer

»
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2012 200

Notes £000s £000s
Cash (outflow}inflow from Group operating activities 20 (7.769} EFREY)
Dividends receved from joint ventures 1,815 608
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest receved 2,632 2919
Interest paid (10) {2543)
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance 2,622 376
Taxation
Corporation tax paid {6,235) (9 881)
Capital expenditure and financal vestmeant
Purchase of tangible fixed nssets (1.317) (2994)
Purchase of investments (109) (2216}
Dispasal of tangible fixed assets 15 63
Dispesal of investments 1333 1746
Net loans repaid by/(to) joint ventures 7,669 (1970}
MNet cash inflow/{outflow) from capitat expenditere and financial investment 7.591 {15371)
Acquisition and disposal
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking - {40 804}
Cash acquired wath subsidiary undertoking - 918
Disposal of subsiciary undertaking - 5580
Cash disposed of with subsidiary undertaking - {2386)
Net cash outflow from acquisition and dispasal - (29 092)
Equity dwidends paid (13,865) {19 913)
Net cash outflow befare Ainancing (15,841 (36 136)
Management of hiquid resources
Cosh withdrawn from short-term deposit 11 080 95 745
Net cash inflow from management of iquid resources 1.080 95,745
Finoncing
issue of preference share copitcl 5,000 -
Repayment of borrowings - (982)
Net cash inflow/{outitow} from financing 5.000 {982)
Increase in cash 21 239 58627
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
31 DECEMBER 2012

u)

m)

w)

v)

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These accounts have heen prepored on the gomg concern basis, tnger the histoncal cost convention s modilied by the revaluotion
of mvestment properties, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom
The principal accounting palicies which have been apphed consistently throughout the year are set out below

Basis of consoliduation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of Wates Group Linuted and its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 December 2012
The acquisition method of accouniing hos been adopted Under thss methed where subsidianes are acquired of sold dunng the year

or where joint arrangements are entered into or terminated dunng the year, the consehkdated accounts include the results for the part of
the year for which they were subsidianes or joint arrangements

Anassociote 1s an undertaking in which the Group has along term nterest usually from 20 per centto 50 per cent of the eguity voting
nights and over whichar exercises significont influence A joint venture 15 on undertaking in which the Group hos along term interest and
over which it exeraises joint controt Associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity basts in the conseldated profit

and lass sccount us the Group s share ol profits less tosses und m the consoliduted balunce sheet ot cost, inciuding odvances, plus

the appropnate shore of post acguisiion retained profits and reserves Where Lhe Graup trades with a jomnt ventwre e propartian of
turnover and profit in respect af the propartion of the joint venture owned by the Group 1s eiminnted on consatdahion Such profit is taken
when the assets purchased by the joint venture are sold by it

Where o Group company s party (o a joint arrangement that 1s not an entity that company accounts directly for its share of the income
and expenditure, assets, ligbilties and cash flows Such arrengements are reported in the consolidated accounts on the same basis

Where the accounting poheies of assoaiates and jont ventures do not conform to the Group s accounting policies, adpuskments are made
an consolidation n order ta present the Group accounis on a uniform basis

In accordance with Section 408 oi the Componies Act 2006 no separate proft and [oss account has been aresented for the Company,
however the profit for the yeor frus been disclosed in note 19

Turnover

Turnover represents the value of work done an contracting activiies sales of residential properties and development properues that are
legally completed within the yeor sales of land on which unconditional exchange of contracts has taken place by the yeor end and other
fees receivoble

Turnover excludes the value of Intra-group tronsactions and Value Added Tax and includes the Group s share of iurnover of joint ventures
and associates

Pre-contract costs

Private Finonce Inatwe (PH) bid costs are charged to the prahit and loss account untl such tme as the Group:s wirtugily certain

that it will enter into contracts for the relevant PFl project Virtual certamty 1s generally achieved at the ttime the Group 1s selected as
preferred bidder From the pont of virtugl certanty bid Costs are capitaised ond hetd in the Group bolance sheet as a debtot prior to
acheving inancinl close On inancrol close of PRl project and financing agreements the Group recovers capitalsed bia casis from the
relevont project company |1 the recovery of bid costs exceeds the omount capitalised by the Group to Rnancial close, the pver-recovery
1s credized to the balance sheet as delerred income Belerred income 15 relegsed to the proft and loss account over the penod of
construction

Tender costs on construction controcts are wntten off to the profit and foss account up until the paintit1s virtuglly certain thet the Group
will be owarded the contract

Research and development
Research and development costs are wntten aff s incurred
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1.

vi)

vii)

vin)

x)

x)

Accounting policies continued

Intangible assets — goodwill — and negative goodwll

Goodwil ansing on the acquistugn of subsidgry undertakings representing any excess of the fair value of the consideration given gver the
g volue of the identifioble ossets and hobihittes ncquired, 13 copitahised and written off on o strarght e basis aver its useful econamir ife
Proviston s made for ony impairment There is no negative goodwill arising on or after 1 January 1958

Puichased goodwill (both positive and negative} onsing on consolidation in respect of acquisiions before ) Jonuory 1998 when FRS 10
Goodwill and intangible asse1s was ocdopted was written off to reserves in the yeor of acquisition When o subsequent disposal occurs,
any gondwil previously wntten off to reserves 1s wnitten hack through the praht and 1oss arcount as part of the probit or lnss on disposol

Tangible hixed assets and depreciatian

Investment praperties are revalued annually at their open market value Net surpluses on voluations of indmidual investment propertes
ore credited to revolugbion reserve Any impenment in velue of indmdual investment properties below cost or the reversal of such o deficit
15 charged (or credited) Lo proft ond loss cccount Bepreciution s not provided inresped § of freehold investiment properties The diectors
consider that this accounting pohicy which represents o departure from the statutory accounting rules 1s necessary to provide a true

und tair view s required under SSAP 19 Accounting for investment properties’ The inanctal effect of the deporture from the statutory
gccounting rules i not materal

Tangible fixed ossets are imibally recorded ot cost Subsequent expendi ure on tongible fixed assetsis copitalised to the extent thot
1t provides gn enhoncement to the econom o benefits of the usset ubove its previously ussessed stundord of performance All other
subsequent expenditure 18 charged to the proft and loss account as incurred

Depreaiation is provided in equal annuot instalments aver the estimated useful Ives of assets so as to write off the Lost less the estimated
residual values over the followng penods

Leasehold lond and buildings penod of lease
Piant and machmery 3to 10 years
Fixturas, itings, 1ools and equepment 2 to 10 years

Investments

In the Company s accounts, nvestments in subsidiary undertokings ussociates and jomt ventures are stated ot cost fess any provision
forimpairment Equity loons and ungquoted investments are stated at cost fess ony provision for imparment [ncome from investments 1s
included in the Group profil ond loss occount as approved

Stocks and work in progress
Stocks and work in progress are stated ot the lower of cost ncluding attributable overheads and interest and net realisable value

Long term contracts

The principo! estimehon (echgue wsed by the Group in oltnbubng profit on controcts 10 o perticulor 0CCounung penod 1s the preparation
ol forecusts on u cantroci-by-controct busis These tocus on Costs to completion and enable on assessinent to be made of the hral
oulturn on egch contract Consistent contract review procedures are m place in iespect of contract forecasting

Profits ontong term controcts ere calcuteted n accordonce with SSAP 9 Stocksond long term contrects For our Construction segment
proiits do not refate direcily to turnover Probt on contracts s only taken at g stuge near enough to completion for thot profit to be
reasonobly certain Provision 1s made for all losses incurred to the accounting dote together with any further losses that are foreseen n
bringing contracts to completion

As certain agreements can run over a considerable number of years and cover a number of individuol separable construction prejects
the gpphicauon of a percentoge complele proft loking rute 1s not deemed eppropiote Profitis therefare taken on these ogreements
where the finol nccounis have been agreed wth the chent in the year
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies contnued

X} Long term contracts continued
Amounts recoverable on contracts which are included in debtors are stoted at cost, plus attributable profit, to the extent that this is
reasonably certain after making prowision for contingencies less any losses incurred or foreseen in bringing contracts to completion
and less amounts receed as progress payments Costs for this purpose mclude valuation of all work done by subcontractors whether
certified or not, and all overheads other than those relating to the general admurstration of the relevant Lomponies. For any controcls
where receipts exceed the book volue of work done the excess is included in creditors as poyments on account

x1}  Finance debtors
The Group has adepted the provisions of FRS S Reporting the substance of transactions (Apphication Note F)in determining the
appropnate treatment of the principal assets of and mcame streams from, PFI contracts Where it hos been demonstrated that the
baionce of nisks and rewards denived from the underlying assel are not borne by the Group the asset created and/or provided under the
controct 1s accounted lor os o hnonce deblor urder FRS S
Durng the construction phase of PFI projects, all attributable expenditure and interest 1s included in amounts recoverable on contracts
and turnover
Upon becoming operational, the tatof costs of the PFl project are transicrred ta the finonce debtor and income denved from the PF
contract Is allocated between the provision of the gsset and the provision of subsequent services Upon acceptonce of the constructed
asset, the finunce debtor1s amortised over the hife of the controct oguinst the relevant porton of the contract nLome

xi1) Residential developments
For our Residential Development segment profits are on the basis of octual property sales to dote compared to forecast inct soles ona
costs tor each development site

xur}) Taxation
The charge for toxations based on the result for the yeor and takes into account axation deferred becouse of iming diiferences between
the treatment of certain stems for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred taxation is provided fully and onanon-discounted basis at
the gverage carporation 1ox rates expecied Lo opply m Lhe penads inwhich the irming differences are expecied 1o reverse based on Lax
rotes and iows that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheer date

xiv) Leoses
Operating lease rentols are charged to the profit ond loss account on a straight Iine basis over the pericd of the lease

xv) Cashand hquid resources
For the purpose of the cash flow statement cosh comprises cash in hand and deposits repaycble in not more than one working day less
overdrafts poyable on demond
Liquid resources are Ciirent asset investments which are dispasoble without curtailing or disrupting the business and are either readily
convertible mto known amounts of cash at or close to thewr corrying volues or traded in on active market Liquid resources compnise term
deposits af less than or equal to one year ather than cash and investments in money market managed funds

xvi) Pension costs and post retirement benehts
The Group operates a defined benefit pensien scherne providing benehts based on pensionable pay, which 1s now clased to new entrants
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
Pension scheme assets are measured using market velues. For quoted securnittes the current bid price is taken os market value Pension
scheme Labiities are measured using a projected urit method and discounted at the current rate of return on o figh qualty corporate
bond of equivatent term and currency to the hability
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1 Accounting policies continued

xvi) Pension costs and post retirement benefits continued
The pension scheme surplus {to the extent that 1S recoverabie) or dehcit 15 recognised in full The movement in the scheme surplus/
deficit shown in the profit and loss gccount 1s sphit between operating chorges ond finance items  Actuanal gans and losses cre shown in
the consolidated statement of total recogrused gans and losses

Tie Group aiso operotes defined contribution schemes The omount charged tothe profit ond foss account represents the contnibutions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting period

xvit) Preference share capital

Preference share camitolis classiied as equity if it 1s non-redeemable and any dwdends are discretionary, ur 1s redeemable but enly gt the
Compony s aplion Drvidends on preference share copital ctassified as equaty are recogmised as an gppropriotion of prohts

Preference shore capital s clossiied os a hobility if 15 redeemable on o specific dote or at the option of the shareholders or if dividend
paymen1s gre not discretionary Dividends therean are recogrised in the proht gnd 10ss gLoount as interest expense

xvin) Fereign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange a1 the dote of transactron Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in forergn cuirencies ot the date of the balance sheet are reported at the rates of exchenge prevaing at that date

The results of overseas companes are transiated at the average rates of exchange dunng the period and their balonce sheets ot the rates
rubng ot the botonte sheet date Exchonge differences onsing on the transiation of opering net ossels and results of oversens companies
ore reported in Lhe consalidoted stotement of total recogmised goins and losses Afl other exchange differences are included in the prabit
and loss account
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED
2. Segmental information 20z 201
2012 201 Profit Profit
Turnover Tuinover before tax belore tox
£000s £Q00s £000s £000s
Construction
Before restructuring costs and profit on sale ofinvestmenis 23,406 31075
Restructuring costs {4 904) -
Prafil an sale of Mvestments 1,302 7,169
Construction 1071129 1029 524 19.804 38 244
Residential development 24,009 2649 9,165 3613
Other activities 1,853 1756 (3.234) {1713)
Group total
Belare restructuring costs ond profit on sale ol invesiments 29,337 32975
Restructuring costs {(4,904) -
Prafi on sale of investments 1,302 7169
Group total 1,096,991 1033929 25,735 40,144
2012 20m
Net assets Net assels
£000s £000s
Construction {103,944} (111 053)
Residenual developrment 61,244 58,632
QOiher otiwities {8.333) {15376}
Cash and net debt 121,254 132,095
70.221 64 298

The Construction segment i1s Woates Canstruction s construction activity for Constructign Living Space and intenors and Retaif customers

Other activities include the Group s provision of workploce ond support services activity and the net pension hability {note 24)

3 Group operating profit

2012 201

£000s £000s
This 1s stated after charging
Auditors’ remuneration®
- audit of these gccounts 21 14
- gudit of subsidignes accounts 179 202
- tmation camplionce services 26 17
- non-audit servces 10 6
Amortisation aof goodwili 1.610 1045
Depreciation of wangible fixed assets
(including loss on disposal £13,000 2011 £8 000) 2,077 1,931
Here of plant and machinery 5074 6060
Operoting lease payments
- lond and buildings 257 2738
- plant and machinery 704 556
Research and development 3.641 4534

* Excludes fee payments made through joint ventures
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4  Stoff numbers and costs

The avercge number of persons employed by the Group {including directars} dunng the year, andfysed by category was os follows

2012 2on
Nuntber Number
Opergtions 1,660 19069
Administration 707 741
2 367 2650

The aggregate payroll costs for the Group were 05 follows
2012 2011
£000s £00D0s
wages and salaries 117564 126522
Social secunty costs 13,272 14 004
Other penston costs B,710 9075
139 946 149,601

The pension operaiing cost for the vear under FRSI7 wos £3 295 000 (200 £3 236,000) n respect of defined benefit arrangements and
£5 415000 (201 £5,839 000) in respect of defined contnbution arrangements

5 Remuneration of directors

2012 201

£000s £000s

Directors’ emoluments  — executive and family directors 2.067 1,992
- independent non-execuive drectons 185 174

Amounts recervable under long term incentive scheme - 3232
Contributions 10 money purchase pension scheme 100 87
2,352 5.485

Five {2001 five) directors have retirement benefits accruing under the Group s defined benefits pension scheme and three (2011 three) directors
heve teneht's accruing under o money surchase pension scheme

2012 2011

£000s £000s

Highest poid director - emoluments 722 606
- amounis receivable under long term incentive scheme - I 755

6 Profit on sale of Investments

The pralit on sole obinvestrents includes the sale of the Group s investment in 72% of QED Lutor (Chatiney) Holdings Lirmited in 2012 ond
1 NED (Siougn) Hetdings hmited Educonon Support {£nfieid 2) Holdings imited Educauon Support {Newham) Holdings | simited and QED
(Clacton) Holdngs Limited in 2011 and 15 nciuded within the Construction segment
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CONTINUED

7 Metinterest recewvahle and ather finance charges

2mz 20H

£000s £000s
Interest recevable
Bank 540 968
Other 2,142 4892
Interast recewable 2 682 5860
Interest payable
Bank - (2325)
Other am (3)
Interest payable aind simifar charges (10} (2 328)
Net interest receivable 2,672 3532
Other finance (charges)/income
Expected return on pension plan assets 6.N4 7678
Interest on pension plon habilities {8.844) (9,281}
Net other finunce charges (2,130) {1 603)
8 Taxobon on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of the charge in the year

2012 20n

£000s EODDS
Current tox
UK corparction tax on the profit tor the year at 24 5% (201 26 5%) 3,528 B742
Adjustments i respect af puor years 33 (29)
Total current tax (note 8b) 3.561 8713
Deferred tox
Deferred tex mavement on pension def:cit 701 (0
Ongination and reversal ot irrong difierences 1,389 238
Decrease n tax rote 310 325
Adjustments in respect of prior years {186) (1))
Total deferred tox 2,214 401
Jont venture tax (note 11} 1,249 680
Associote tax (note 11) - -
Totol tox on profit on ordingry activities 7,024 9794
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8 Toxotion on profit on ordinary activities continued

b) Factors offecting the current tax charge for the year

The current tax charge for the year s lower than the standard rate of carporation taxin the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) The differences are
exploined befow

2012 2am
£000s EDDDS
Proht on ordinory activities before taxation 25,735 40144
Less share of proht before tax of joint ventures gnd ossocrate toxed as seporate entties {4,759} {1323}
Sroup profit on ordmcry achivbies hetore tox 20,976 38821
Group proht on ordinary actmties multiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 5139 10288
Effects of
Permanent disallowable costs 1275 854
Uubisation of tox losses (134) {55)
Additional deduction for research and development (268) (360)
Deprecigtton in excess of capital allowances 92 22
Franked investment income {12} (14)
Untaxed capital gains {319} (1800}
Short-term timing diferences and other crovisions {1499) {200)
Tax ttming difference in relation to pension fiability (746) 107
Adjustments in respect of prior years 33 (29)
Current tox charge for the year 3 561 8713

c) Factors that may affect future tox charges

The Groupis not aware of any signiicant factor thet may affect future tax charges otner than the reductions i the main rate of corporation tox
already reduced from 24% 10 23% from ) April 2013 with a proposed turther reduction to 21% from 1 April 2014 which is expected to be enocted
in 2013

Ii the deferred tax osseis of the Group were oll to reverse oiter 2014 the efiect of the proposed change rom 23% 10 21% would be to reduce the
deferred tax assets by £1068 000 To the extent thot the deferred tox reverses more quickly than this the impoct on the deferred tox ossets wi
be reduced
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CONTINUED

9 intangible ossets - goodwll

Group £000s
Cost
Al January 2012 and 31 December 2012 29 652
Amortisation
At) Jonuory 2012 1810
Provided during the yeor 1610
At 31 December 2012 3420
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2012 26,232
At 31 December 201} 27 842
Goodwilhis being omortised over ten years and twenty years which is respectively its estimated usefut economic life
10 Tangible fixed ossets

Land and buildings

Investment Fitures Assetsin
properhes - Shont Plant and fthngs tools the course of

freehold leasehold mochinery ond equipment cansiryction Group total
Group £000s £000s £0D0s £0005 £00Ds £000s
Valuation or ¢ost
At 1January 2012 14 320 4603 633 13.218 481 33255
Additions - 9 67 669 572 1317
Revaluations 330 - - - - 330
Transfers - - - 959 {959} -
Disposals - - (56} (27 - (83}
At 31 December 2012 14,650 4,612 644 14 819 94 34819
Deprecigticn
At 1 January 2012 - 2575 399 10576 - 13550
Provided during the year - 530 96 1438 - 2,064
Disposals - - (34) (21) - {55}
At 31 December 2012 - 3105 461 11993 - 15,559
fet book gmounts
At 31 December 2012 14,650 1,507 1893 2,826 94 19,260
At 31 December 20H1 14 320 2028 234 2642 481 19705

The investment properties of the Group were volued as at 31 December 2012 by Richard M Tnmming BSc FRICS a director of o subsidiary of the
Group on an open market velue bosis at £14 650 000 The cost of investment properties at 31 December 2012 was £13,189 000 Other tangible

fixed gssels arc staled at cosl less depreciation
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Interests
n joint Interestm Unquoted Totol other
ventures assaciate nvestments Equltv lpans investments
Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At January 2012 51221 - 1874 757 263l
Additions 1501 a8 - - 98
Repayments (24538) - - (22) (22)
Prowision released - - - b 3]
Transferred to debtors falling due withuin one year (1 184) - - - -
Share of profit/(loss) 6068 (34) - - (34)
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 46,578 64 1.874 741 2,679
Principal joint ventures
The Group holds the following nterests in the ordinary share capital of the following compantes
interest Actmty
Luton Learning and Community Partnerstup Lymited 200% PE
Regenter Excellent Hormes for Life Holding Compony Limited 20 0% PFI
Annington Wates (Cove) Limited S00% Residentiaf development
Barratt Wates (East Grinstead) Limited 50 G% Residential development
Barrott Wotes (Hosley) Limited 215% Residentiol development
Barratt Wotes {Worthing) Limited 500% Residential development
DWH/Wates (Thame) Limited 50 0% Residential development
Linden Wates (Craniigh) Limited 500% Residenticl development
Linden Wates Developments (Chichester) Limited S00% Residentiol development
Linden Wates Developments (Folders Meadow) Limited 50 0% Residential development
Linden Wates (Dorking) Limited S0 0% Residential development
Linden Wates (Fulham) Limited S00% Restdential development
Linden Wates (Ridgewood) Lirmited 50 0% Residenugt development
Linden Wates {West Hampstead) Limited 500% Residential development
The Group holds the following interests i unincorporated |oint ventures
Interest Actty
At Ain Schools Joint Venture 24 5% Construction
Al Bateen Secondary School Joint Venture 24 5% Construction
Britssh School Joint Venture 24 5% Construction
Address of the gbove three joint ventures
Suite 702 7th Floor Al Fara a Corperate Head Cffice Behund Municipality Court
Oft Delma Streel, Defence Areo Abu Bhaly Ueited Arob Emirates
Linden Wates St Albons Joint Venture 50 0% Residenttal development

Address Linden House Linden Square Harefield Middiesex UBY GTQ
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11. Joint ventures and other investments continued

The Group s joint venture interests are analysed segmentally os follows

Residentiol Resdentinl
Construction development Total Construchion development Total
2012 2012 2012 201 201 201
Group £000s £000s £0DD0s £000s £000s £0005
Turnover 46 493 49,069 95,562 61,120 21992 8312
Operoting proht/{loss} 132 8,948 9,080 (393) 4092 3,699
Prof/(loss) before toxation 33 1.284 1.37 (480) 2599 219
Taxauon (7) 1,242) {1,249) {16) (664} {680}
Profit/Alloss) ofter ioxouion 26 6,042 5.068 {456} 1935 Y439
Share of gross assets
Frxed ossets - - - 7 - 7
Current assets 21,569 58,361 79,930 31309 52,977 84 286
Share of gross gssets 21,569 58,361 79,830 31,316 5¢ 977 84 293
5hare of gross labilities
Ligbilities due wathin one yeor (1,475) {15,717) {27.192) (6057) (7885} (12,942}
Liabilrties due after one year {10 086} {33,994) (44,080) (25241 {40662) {65,903}
Share of gross habilities (21,561) (49 711) (71,272) {31 298) (48 547) {79 845)
1 oans provided to joint ventures 1622 36,298 37.920 3886 42 887 46773
Total nvestmentin jont ventures 1,630 44,948 46,578 3,904 47 317 51221

Turnover from Group traging with joint ventures, which 1s disciosed in note 27, ncludes £34 807 000 (201 £38 324 000) which was ehminoted
on consolidation beirtg the proportion of turnover refuting 10 the proportion of those joint ventures owned by the Group

Assocate

The Group holds o 49% interest in the ordinory shore capital of Countrywise Reporrs Limited which 1s inciuded withun the Construcnon segment
The Group s share of the turnover and loss of the associaté company 1s o5 follows

2 I
Group 0000 ity
Turnover 1,015 -
Operating loss (34) -
Loss before taxation (34) -
Taxotion - -
Loss after taxauon (34) -
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11. Jomnt ventures and other investments continued
Unguoted investments
These principally compnse the Group s interest i the following company
Interest ACtmty

Gambado Lwmted 100% non-voting Preference shares ond ) 4% Qidinary shares Children s entertamment centres

The cost of shares in unquoted nvestments s £1 874 000 (2011 £1,874 000)

Equity loans

These comprnise amounts advanced to homebuyers to assist in thew purchase of the Group s residential properttes under equity share schemes
The loans, with a cest of £1137 000 (201 £1158 00Q) are repayable when the underlying property is sold together with @ share in the capital
appreciation included mn this total are loans with o cost of £199,000 (2011 £199,000} which are repayable if the propernes are not sold by
2021 Theloons are mainly secured by a charge over the property Loans with a cost of £381 000 {201 £391 000} are interest free and loans
with @ cost of £745 000 (2011 £767 000) are interest free until 2016 when a fee of 175 percent 15 receivable nsing annuglly by the Retail Price
Index plus one percent

Shares o
Graup Unquoted
undertakings Nvestments Total
Company £000s £000s £000s
At Jacuary 2012 56 202 1874 58G77
Reductions {1900) - (1900)
Prowisions released 2235 - 2235
At 31 December 2012 56,538 1,874 58.412

The cost of shares in Group undertakings s £75 262 000 (2011 £77,162 000)
The cost of shares in unquoted investments is £1,874 Q00 {2011 £1 874 0G0}

For the year ending 31 December 2012 the following subsidiary companies were entitled to exemption from oudit of individual company
accounts under Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006

Wates Limited {compeny number 03599183)

Wates Group Serwces Limited {compony number 0340931

Wates Lancewood Estates Limited {company number 0965116)
QED Education Environments Lirited {company number 0629832)

The Group s pancipal subsidiary undertakings are set out on poge 86
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12 Stocks
Group £§g:]§ fozuoi::;
Row materials and consumables 283 152
Residential land ond work in progress under development 9,443 14 883
3,726 15035
13 Oebtars
Group Lompany
2mz 20m 2m2 201
EQ00s £000s £000s £000s
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 79,193 61061 41 17
Amounts recoverable on contracts 86,360 96,553 - -
Amounts owed by subsidhary undertakings - - 23,248 18894
Amounts owed by joint ventures 1,323 1214 - -
Deferred taxotion (note 17) 1,845 2436 - -
Other debtors 1,308 2923 33 1017
Prepayments and accrued income 2,936 3010 a5 180
182,965 167,197 23,417 20108
Amounts falling due ofter more than one yeor
Amounts recoverable on contracis 13,362 9325 - -
Deterred taxatton {note 17) 521 1443 - -
Other debtors 1.2N 242 1,150 100
15,174 1010 1,150 100
198,138 178 207 24 567 20208
14 Creditors. amounts falling due within one yeor
Group Company
2012 201 202 201
EO00s £OD0s EQQDs £000s
Advance poymenis on gccount of conrtracts 56,013 74,988 - -
Trode credrtors 55,062 52934 - -
Amoums owed 10 subsidory undertokings - - 32742 4138
Amounts owed t0 joint ventures 1,998 - - -
Corporation tax poyable 1,926 4601 - -
Other taxes ond social secunty 15,203 14,453 - -
Other credrtors 4,005 4207 - -
Acctuals and deferred income 167,275 161 551 - -
301,482 312734 32,742 41138
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Qther intarmation

Group Compony

2012 201 2m2 2on

£0005 £000s £000s E000s

Accruals ond deferred income 13,497 14 241 - -
16 Provisions for Habilities

Group cggt])i

At Jonuory 4,648

Uulised during the year (539}

Profit and {oss account — cnarged during the year 1361

At 31 December 5,470

All provisions gre construction related and are the group s estmates of the amounts which are expected to be pard when hinclised generaily

after one year after the balonce sheet date

17 Deferred taxation

2012

Group £000s

At 1 January 3879

Lharged ta profit and loss gclount {1513}

At 31 December 2,366
Deferred taxation 15 provided as foltows

202 201

£000s £000s

Accumulated depreciation in excess of capital allowances 459 471

Short-term trming differenices 1,842 3337

Tox tosses availoble 65 7

2,366 3879

2012 20n

£000s EO00s

Deferred taxation asset under one year 1845 2436

Deferred toxation asset over one year 521 1443

2,366 3879
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18 Called up share copital

20012 20m
Number £000s Number £000s
Issued and fully poid
A ordinary shores of £1 each 323.854 324 323854 324
B ordinary shares of El each 323,854 324 323,854 324
C ordinary shares of £1 each 323854 324 323854 324
A second ordinary shores of £0 0277 each 60 - 60 -
8 second ordinory shores of £0 0277 each 60 - o0 -
C second ordinary shares of £0 0277 each 60 - (18] -
Non-votmg second preference shares of £1 each 5,000,000 5,000 - -
Non-voting A preference shares of £l each 2,914,677 2914 2914677 2914
Non-votng B preference shares of £1 each 2,914,677 2914 2914677 2.914
Non-voung C preference shares of £l each 2,914,677 2914 2914677 2914
Index inked non-voting A shares of £1 each 20.750 21 20750 21
index inked non-voting B shares of £1 eoch 20,750 21 20750 21
Index inked non-voting C shoses of £1 each 20,750 21 20,750 21
14,778 023 14,777 9,718 023 777
The second preference shares noted cbove were allotted by the Company during the year for £5 000 000:n cash
19 Share premium occount and reserves
Share Caopitat Proft and
premum redemption Revaluation loss
qaccount reserve reserve account
Group £000s £000s £000s £000s
Ati January 2017 a56 17 447 1.220 34898
Revaleatan surplus - - 550 -
Currency tronsiation difference on fareign currency net mvesiment - - - 255
Prafit for the hngncial yeor - - - 18 At
Dwidends paid - - - (13 865)
Actuanial loss recogrised i the pension scheme - - - (5.073)
Deferred tax credit grnising on loss in the pension scheme - - - 345
At 31 December 2012 956 17,447 1,770 35.21N
Share Capiai Proftond
presmm redemplion (333
account reserve account
Corpany £000s £000s £000s
Ar1januery 2012 956 17 447 9,281
Proht for tite hmoncwt yeor - - 22.362
Dividends paid - - {13 865)
At 31 December 2012 956 17,447 17,778
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20 Reconciliotion of Group operating profit to operating cash flows
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2mz2 201

£000s £000s

Group opeioting prat including jont ventures ond associate 25,874 32666

Depreciation end amorusation 3,687 2976

Provisions movement 816 (680}

joint ventures and asseciate (9.046) {3699)

Decrease in stocks 5.309 2715

{Increasel/decrease n debtors (20.211) 5653

Decrease n creditors (14,198) (2 494)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating actwities {7.769) 37137

21 Analysis of changes in net funds

At A3l

1 fanuory Cash December

2012 flow 2012

£000s £000s £040s

Cash at bank and in hond 132 095 (10841 121,254

Less deposits due aiter one day (19.094) 11080 (8,014)

239

Liquid resources depostts due after one day 19 094 (11 080) 8,014

Net funds 132,095 {10 841) 121,254
22. Reconcihation of net cash flow to movement i net funds

2m2 2011

£000s £000s

Increase in cash in the year 239 58627

Cash inflow from decrease in quid resources {1.080) {95745)

Cosh outflow from decrease m bank loans - 982

Change in net funds resulting from cash Hows (10.841) (36136)

Bank loans disposed of with subsidiary - 42 559

Amortisation o 1ssue costs of debt - {22)

Movernent in net funds in year (10.841) 5,400

Net funds at 1 January 132,095 125 594

Net funds at 31 Becember 121,254 132 095
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23 Dperating lease commitments

tand and Lond and
buildings Dther Builgings Other
2012 2012 20§l 200
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Annual Group commitments to operating lease
poyments within one yeor i respect of leases expiring
Within one year 233 197 14 125
Belweon two and five years 2.095 an 2266 313
After ive years 10 - 144 -
2,338 608 2424 438

24 Pension schemes

The Group operates o funded defined benelit pension scheme, the Wates Pension Fund { the Scheme ) for olt gqualifying employees working in
the UK and personal pension schemes providing benefits on a defined contribution basis The funds of the Scheme are administered by trustees
and are seporate from the funds ot the Group The Scheme s closed to new entrants

The latest full actuonal vaiuation of the Scheme was carnied out at 1 Jenuary 2011 and was updated to 31 Decernber 2012 by a quohhed

independent octuary

The current practice of Incregsing pens:ons in ine with nflauan s included 0 the measurement of the defined beneft obiigation The pensian
€ast charged 1o the profit and foss account makes no atlowance for actuaniol gains and losses dunng the year Actuanal gams and losses are
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Towal Recognised Gains and Losses in the year they occur

2012 201
£000s £000s
Lhanges in present value af the defined beneht obligation
Defined henafit obhgotion ot} January 190,069 169 886
Current service cost 3,295 3236
Interest cost 8,844 9281
Scheme participants contrthutions S6 58
Actuariot losses 10.959 13941
Benefts paxi (7.144) {6333)
Expenses poid (840} -
Taxes paid (112) -
Dehned benefit obligatton ot 31 Becenber 205127 190 069
Changes in fair value of Scheme assets
Farr value of Scheme assets at | January 148,982 138035
Expected return on Scheme gssets 6,714 7678
Actuanial gains 5,886 5107
Employer contribution 8,47 4437
Scheme participants contrnbutions 56 58
Benefts poid (1.144) {6333}
Expenses paid {840) -
Toxes pod n2) -
Fan value of Scheme assets at 31 December 162,013 148 982
Funded status (43,14) {41087)
Reloted deferred tox osset 9916 10 272
Net pension habihity in balance sheet {33.198) (30 815)
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Components of pension cest Jg;g mzu%'s'

Rerogrused in the profit ond loss occount

Current service cost 3,295 3.236

Interest cost 8,844 9281

Expected return on Scheme ossets {6,714) (1678)

Total 5.425 4.839

Recognisad in the statement of totol recognised

gains and losses

Actuanal losses immediately recognised 5.073 8.834

Curnulotive amount of octuaral losses

immedtately recognised 53,204 48,131

Scheme assets zmli 20;

Mgjor categories of Scheme assets as a percentoge

of total Scheme assets

Equity securities 26 2% 139%

Debt securities BS 5% 707%

Property 34% 70%

Other 4 9% 84%
100 0% 100 0%

To develop Lhe expected long term rate of return an assets assumption, the Group considers Lhe current level of expected returns on nsk-free
investments (pnmarily government bonds) the histoncal level of the risk premium associated with the other asset classes i which the portfolio
15 invested and the expectations for the future returns of each asset class The expected return for each gsset class is then weighted based on
the target asset allocaton to develop the expected long tetm rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolo This cesults in the selection

of the 4 5 per cent assumptien shown befow (yeor ended 31 December 2012)
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24 Pension schemes continued

2012 201

£000s £000s
Actual return on Scheme assets 12,600 12785
Principal octuanat assumptions at the balance sheet date
{expressed as werghted averages) 2012 2on
Discountrote 445% 470%
Rate of compensation increase 295% 410%
Rate of price inflation 295% 310%
Rate of pension increase (2 5% limited price ndexation) 250% 250%
Expected long term return on Scheme assets 450% 5 60%
Weighted overcge e expectancy for moriahty tobles used 202 20n
10 delermme benent obhigobions at yeor end E00Os £000s
Male member age 65 (current hfe expectancy) 23.2 227
Female mernber age b5 {current life expectancy) 248 241
Male member age 45 (hife expectancy ot age 65) 250 241
Female member age 45 (Ife expectancy at age 65} 26 8 256
Five year story £o00s £000s £000, £o0ds £o00,
Defined beneht obhyation 205,127 130069 169,886 147,641 133289
Scheme gssets 162,013 148 982 138035 126 698 118513
Deficit {43,114) {4t 087 {31851) (20,943) (14776)
Expenience gains and (losses) on Scheme fiabilities - (9 465) - - (7.382)
Difference between expected and actual return on
Schoms sssets # 5,886 5107 5839 3097 (17582)
Contnbutions

The Group expects to contnbute approximately £6 721,000 including expenses to the Scheme n 2013

Creditors ot 31 December 2012 include £nif {2011 £492 00Q) of pansion rontributions poyable inrespect of defined contnbution schames

25 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2012 the Group had no contracted copital expendrture (2011 Eril)
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26. Contingencies

There are claums ansing i1 the normal course of trading which are in the process of negotiation and which in some cases are likely to be
protrocted over several years Provision hos been made for all amounts which the directors consider will becorme payable on account of clams
There are congingent labilities in respect of guarentees under buildings and other careements entered into in the narmal course of business

The Company has quaranteed the overdrafts of subsidiory undertakings

27. Related parties

Turnover in respect of the vglue of contracting work dona for and land sold to jont ventures i the year ended 31 December 2012 was
£65 037,000 (20N £54 801 000)

Amounts were due tc the Group from joint ventures at 31 December 2012 of £39,243000 (2011 £47 987 000} Additionally at 31 December
2012 the Group owed joint ventures £1 998 300 (201 £nif)

At 31 December 2012, £1 000 000 {201t £900,000) was due from Myriad LEG Group Limited {Myriad) and 15 included i other debtors of the
Company and the Group Myriad 1s related to the Company and the Group through commen control Myniad Group undertook contract work for
the Group for £701 000 {2011 £1 482 000) during the year
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

All prircipal subsidiary undertakings are incorporated in England and Waoles except where otherwise stoted

The Wates Group Limiied interestis 100% (except where otherwise stoted) n the issued share copiol
of these undertakings included in the consohdated accounts

Construction companies

Waotes Construction Limiteg*

Wates Construction internatonat LLC Gncorporated in Abu Dhatn gunarstp interest 49%)
Wates Intenors Limited

Wates Maintenance Services Limited

Wates Regeneration (Coventry) Limited

Linbrook Services Lunited

QED Education Environments Liumted*

Residential development companies

Wotes Deveiopments Lirmited”

Wates Group Properties Limited

Provision of workplace and support services company
Needspoce? Limited*

Group services company

Wates Group Services Limited”

*Dwned directly by Wates Group Linmited

Subsidiary undertakings not noted obuve wil 92 included in 0 hst hled at Cumpanies House with the annual return

86

Above aolf it’s about people




GROUP FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

Business ond Finoncicl Overview

Chalrman and Chief Executive s Review

Cose studes

Business and Finonacl Review

Governance

Accounts

[Q ! Other informaotion

2008 2009 2010 200 2012
£m £m Em £m £m
Profit and loss account
Group tumover (pfus share of jont ventures
and associate s turnover) 1013 345 985 s 1194
Group turngver 1009 04 895 1034 1097
Operoung profit 371 380 411 327 259
Profit on ordinary activities befare taxation 471 389 435 401 257
Bulance sheet
Net assets 621 595 607 643 702
ADVISORS
Auditors Registered Office and
PncewaterhouseCogpers LLP Business Head Ofhice
Chartered Accountants and Wates House
Statutory Auditors Station Approach
One Embankment Place Leatherheod
London WC2N 6RH Surrey
KT2z2 7sw

Bankers
HSBC Bank plc T 01372861000
60 Queen Victona Street W wwwwates couk
London
ECAN 4TR
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ADDRESSES

Registered Office and
Business Head Gffice
Wates House

Station Approach
Leatherhead

Surrey

K122 75W

T 01372 861200
W wwiwwotes co uk

Principal Offices

4th Fleor
Netwark House
Basing View
Basingstoke
Hampshire

RG21 4HG

T 01256 301750

Wates House

11 Ridgeway

Quunton Business Park
Quinton

Birmingham

B32 1AF

T 01214232323

Ground Floor
South Wing
Equinax Narth
Great Park Road
Almondsbury
Bristol

B532 4QL

T 01454 615561

Suite 7225 Building 7200
Cambridge Research Park
Beach Drive

Waterbeach

Cambridge

CB2S 9TL

T 01223 815666

Paviion S
Gorden Court
Lockangton Hall
Derby

DE74 2RH

T 0iI509 578935

Linbrook Services Ltd
Frankiinn House

Crown Road

Enheld

ENIIFE

T 0208804 7777

Westcourt
Gelderd Road
Wortley

Leeds

LS12 608

T 0132311880

The Peak

2nd iloor

5 Wilton Road
London
SWIVIAN

T020 7630 4410

Muiberry House
Porkland Square
750 Capability Green
Luton

LUk 3W

T 01582 400171

The Royals

4ih Floar Offices

353 Altnncham Road
Shorston
Manchester

M22 48

T 0161946 8800

I Clearwgter

Lingley Mere Business Park
Lingley Green Avenue

Great Sankey
Warnngton

WAS 3uZ

T 01925 791100

3 Seoward Ploce

Centurion Business Park

Glosgow
G4l 1HH
T 01414299440

26 Crewe Rood Gardens
Edinburgh

EH3 2NN

T 015N 504

Lianmaes
Michoelston Road
St Fagans

Carditf

CFS 60U

T 02920 575200

Wates Construction
Internotionel LLC

PO Box 3486

20th Foor

HH Skh Sultan Bin Hamdan
Al Nahyan Building
Cormche Road

Abu Dhaby

United Arab Emirates

T +9M26431882
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